MiSSG Manual for Aid Administrators





888-447-2687 mistudentaid@michigan.gov michigan.gov/mistudentaid

Table of Contents

Overview of MiSSG	4
MiSSG User Accounts	
College Security Access Forms	4
Locating MiSSG	
MiSSG Features	4
Home Tab	4
Using Quick View	5
Using MiSSG Search Feature	
Reports and Rosters	7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Children of Veterans Tuition Grant (CVTG)	8
School Profile	8
CVTG Payment History	9
View Students CVTG Records	10
CVTG Application Status: Eligible and Ineligible Messages Ineligible Status Reason Descriptions	11 11
Student Application	12 14 14 15 17 17 18 18
CVTG Reimbursement Request	19
Requesting Additional Funds	22
Multiple Reimbursement Requests Reimbursement Information Screen	23 23
Remove a Non-Paid CVTG Reimbursement Request	24
Refunding Paid CVTG Reimbursements	25
Michigan Competitive Scholarship (MCS) Features	27
School Profile	27
MCS Payment History	27
MCS Clear Ineligible Reasons	27
MCS Certification	28
MCS Certification Rosters	28

Download Certification Roster	28
Upload Certification Roster	30
Online Certification	33
Adjusting MCS Awards	33
Requesting Reinstatement	34
Reporting GPA and SAP	34
Determining 4th Quarter Payment and Balancing The equation:	35 35
Michigan Tuition Grant (MTG) Features	36
School Profile	36
MTG Payment History	36
MTG Clear Ineligible Reasons	37
MTG Certification	37
MTG Certification Rosters	37
Download Certification Roster	38
Upload Certification Roster	39
Online Certification	41
Adjusting MTG Awards	
Requesting Reinstatement	42
Reporting SAP	43
Determining 4th Quarter Payment and Balancing The equation:	43 43
Police Officer's and Fire Fighter's Survivor Tuition Grant (STG) Features	44
School Profile	44
STG Payment History	45
View Students STG Records	46
STG Application Status: Eligible and Ineligible Messages Ineligible Status Reason Descriptions	46 47
Student Application	48
Student Information	49
Application Information	
Household Information	52
Reimbursement Information	52 52
Payment Information	53
	53
Sig keimpursement kequest	54
Requesting Additional Funds	56
Multiple Reimbursement Requests Reimbursement Information Screen	57 57

Remove a Non-Paid STG Reimbursement Request	58
Refunding Paid STG Reimbursements	58
Tuition Incentive Program (TIP) Features	
School Profile	
TIP Payment History	62
TIP Reimbursement Request Download File	63
TIP Reimbursement Request Request Reimbursement Using Upload Roster Online Reimbursement Request	69 70 76
Lookup TIP Remaining Credits/Amounts	79
TIP Application Status: Eligible and Ineligible Messages	80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 8
Adjustments for TIP Reimbursement Refunds	81 81
Requesting Additional Credits	
Reducing the Number of Credits - Before Payment	
MiSSG Data Management System	
Personally Identifiable Information and Data Security	

Overview of MiSSG

MiSSG allows financial aid professionals, referred to as School Users, to work with student records, clear errors, run reports, and perform awarding tasks such as certification, requesting reimbursement, and award adjustments. MiSSG also tracks and posts quarterly payments from SSG to postsecondary institutions for the supported grant programs.

MiSSG User Accounts

College Security Access Forms

For college financial aid professionals to have access to MiSSG, they must complete the <u>College Security</u> <u>Access Form</u> each academic year. A username and temporary password will be assigned by SSGO and emailed to the authorized MiSSG user.

Locating MiSSG

Navigate to MiSSG at michigan.gov/missg.

Click the 'Log In' button.



MiSSG Features

Home Tab

The Home tab displays MiSSG news and updates frequently, providing timely processing information, deadline dates, etc.



Using Quick View

To view a student's record in MiSSG, enter the MiSSG ID or Social Security number (SSN) in the Quick View Box and click the 'Go' button. To use the Quick View Feature, one of the following MUST have occurred:

- Your institution is the 1st Michigan school listed on the student's FAFSA.
- The student was transferred to your institution.

Quick View
SSN Quick View
SSN © GO
MiSSG ID GO
0
- Existing MCS/MTG
MCS/MTG 2023 - 2024
- Existing Grants/Scholarships
Michigan Achievement Skills
Scholarship 2023 - 2024
Michigan Achievement Scholarship
2023 - 2024
Transaction History
Payment History
FAFSA Data
Summary Data 2023 - 2024

If a student has not filed a Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) or has not updated their current year records in the MiSSG Student Portal by selecting your institution as their school of choice, you will get the following message:



Using MiSSG Search Feature

If you do not have a student's full SSN or MiSSG ID, search for the student's information by using MiSSG's Search feature. Click on the 'MiSSG' menu item on the left navigation bar. Then click on 'Search.' You may use as many fields as needed, using additional fields will improve the speed of your search.

Student Search Criteria	
Unique MiSSG ID	
Last Name	
First Name	
Date of Birth	
SSN First 5	
SSN Last 4	
Phone Number	
Email Address	
Additional Search Criteria	
Academic Year	```
Aid Program	~
Sort Criteria	
Sort By	v
	SUBMIT CRITERIA RESET CRITERIA

Parameters for search fields:

- 1. Last Name Not case sensitive, but punctuation matters.
- 2. First Name Not case sensitive, but punctuation matters.
- 3. Date of Birth Eight digits mm/dd/yyyy (do not type slashes in datefield).
- 4. SSN First 5 Up to five digits of SSN.
- 5. SSN Last 4 Up to last four digits of SSN.

Additional Search Criteria

- 6. Select Academic Year from drop down menu.
- 7. Select Aid Program from drop down menu.

Click the 'Submit Criteria' button to begin the search. Below is an example of a search result.

Search Results				
Found 31 Student Records				
Page 1 of 2 刘				
SSN Aid Program Michigan Achievement Skills Scholarship	Name AC Year 2023 - 2024	Date Of Birth Eligibility Status Eligible	Current Institution	
SSN	Name	Date Of Birth		
Aid Program Michigan Achievement Skills Scholarship	AC Year 2023 - 2024	Eligibility Status Eligible	Current Institution	

Reports and Rosters

Under the MiSSG menu tab, report and roster options are available to assist aid administrators with identifying eligible students, determining if ineligible reasons can be cleared, providing details on remaining TIP credits, and payment information.

Reports can be exported into PDF, Excel, Word, and other programs by clicking on the floppy disk icon on the top of the screen.

Activity Reports

Eligible Students Report

Identifies students who are eligible for the selected State aid program at the institution and the current award amount. Students listed on the Eligible Students Report have indicated to our office, either through the MiSSG Student Portal or the FAFSA, that they are attending a specific institution. These reports can also be used to verify enrollment. If a student is missing from the report, please contact our Customer Care Center to request that the student is transferred (if eligible). Reports indicate Date Eligible/Transferred In so institutions can filter and award based on newly transferred students.

Ineligible Students Report

Students on this report are not eligible for the ineligible reason(s) listed. If the ineligibility reason is resolved, they will be automatically removed from this report.

Remaining Credits Report

Report provides the student name, SSN, Date of Birth, Total Annual TIP Credits Remaining, Total Credits Remaining, Phase II Total Amount Remaining, and TIP Expiration Date.

School Totals Report

The report includes all students with payment records for the selected academic year and aid program.

Rosters

Certification Roster

The roster includes all students with a payment record in a status of "Ready to Certify" for the selected academic year and aid program. Can be used to prepare for the certification process by downloading certification lists as a spreadsheet. The roster will differ in format from the text file that can be downloaded under 'Certification.'

Information Roster

Contains students and additional data for the selected aid program and academic year.

Payment Roster

Includes all students with a payment/adjustment record in a status of "Paid" for the selected academic year and aid program. Can be sorted chronologically.

Children of Veterans Tuition Grant (CVTG)

School Profile

Contact information for your institution is stored in your school profile. It is important to keep this record up to date.

Contact information is program specific. If you have different staff working on different State of Michigan programs, you will need to provide separate contact information for each program under the 'School Profile' tab.

To view/update your profile information for CVTG, click the 'Children of Veterans Tuition Grant' menu item on the left navigation bar. Then click on 'School Profile.'



Home	School Profile(CVTG) 🗙		
		View Scho	ool Profile
		Academ	ic Year
		Acuten	
		School OECode	
		School Branch	
		Vendor ID	
		School Name	
		Address	
		Address2	
		City	
		State	
		Zip Code	
		Phone Number	
		Fax Number	
		Parent Institution	
		School Type	
		Term Type	
		Dormitory	
		Closed	
		Program: Children of V	veterans Tuttion Grant
		Mail Code	
		Contact Name	
		Contact Title	
		Contact Email Address	
		Phone Number	
		Fax Number	
		Secondary Contact Name	
		Secondary Contact Litie	
		Secondary Contact Email Address	
		Secondary Frone Number	
		Secondary Pax Number	-
		Active	-
	COMMENT	IS UPDATE TRANSACTIO	DN HISTORY PAYMENT HISTORY CANCEL

CVTG Payment History

The Payment History displays information about CVTG payments made to your institution during the selected academic year.

To view the 'Payment History,' click the 'Children of Veterans Tuition Grant' menu item on the left navigation bar.

Then click on 'Payment History.'

SSC
Exit MISSG
MISSG
Michigan Competitive Scholarship
Michigan Tuition Grant
Tuition Incentive Program
Children of Veterans Tuition Grant.
Award Rules
School Profile
Payment History
Reimbursement Request
Survivor Tuition Grant
Quick View

Page | 9

Home	Paymer	it History(CVTG) 🗶						
			Рауг	nent History				
Current Ba	lance:						Change Academic Year	~
Da	te	Batch Number	Warrant/EFT Number	Program	Quarter	Туре	Payment A	mount
		Q15300131118	201811070958779	CVTG	1	Q1 Payment	\$45,850).00
						Total:	\$45,85	0.00
				CANCEL				

- Current Balance
 - Will only display a value after the 4th Quarter payment. Shows the difference between the total paid to the institution, the total sum of all awards, and adjustments at year-end.
- Change Academic Year
 - o Only data for the selected academic year will display.
- Date
 - o The date that the table entry occurred.
- Batch Number
 - The unique code assigned to the overall payment that this payment was included in.
- Warrant/EFT Number
 - The unique code assigned to this payment to an institution.
- Program
 - The MiSSG program that the payment was generated for.
- Quarter
 - The fiscal quarter that this entry is associated with.
- Type
 - o The type of action that describes this entry.
- Payment Amount
 - o The amount of funds assigned to this entry.
- Total
 - o The sum of all amounts of all entries.

View Students CVTG Records

- 1. Enter the student's complete SSN.
- 2. Click the 'GO' button.



1. Click on the desired academic year for CVTG under 'Existing Grants/Scholarships.'





CVTG Application Status: Eligible and Ineligible Messages

At the top of the student's CVTG record, an eligibility status will be displayed for the academic year selected. Only students with the status of 'Eligible' may have a reimbursement requested for them.



If the student's status is "Ineligible," then a reason(s) will also be displayed.



Ineligible Status Reason Descriptions

Birth Certificate Not on File

A copy of the student's birth certificate showing both parents names is not on file with SSG.

Citizenship Status

Student must be a U.S. citizen, permanent resident, or approved refugee.

Convicted of a Felony

Student has been convicted of a felony involving an assault, physical injury, or death.

Death Certificate Not on File

If deceased, a copy of the veteran's death certificate is not on file with SSG.

Default or Refund Owed on State Financial Aid

The student cannot be in default on State financial aid.

Discharge Certificate Not on File

A copy of the veteran's discharge certificate (DD214) is not on file with SSG.

GPA Requirement Not Met

The student must maintain a minimum cumulative GPA of 2.25.

Ineligible Institution

The student's 'Current Institution' field must be set to an institution that has 'Yes' in the Active field for CVTG on the 'School Profile' screen.

Maximum Assistance

A student can only receive funds up to four academic years (does not have to be consecutive years) or can only receive up to the maximum lifetime amount of \$11,200, whichever comes first.

Proof Disability/Death Due to Service Not on File

Proof of the veteran's total and permanent disability or death due to service-connected causes is not on file with SSG.

Reached Maximum Age

The student must be less than 26 years old prior to the start of the Fall semester/term.

Satisfactory Academic Progress Not Met

The student must maintain Satisfactory Academic Progress (SAP) as determined by the institution.

Student Not MI Resident

Student must be a resident of Michigan for one year prior to application.

Veteran Not a MI Resident

Proof of the veteran's Michigan residency is not on file with SSG.

Student Application

The student application consists of seven sections:

- 1. Student Information
- 2. Comments
- 3. Application Information
- 4. Deceased or Disabled Veteran's Service Information
- 5. Reimbursement Information
- 6. Payment Information
- 7. Program Totals



Student Information

School Users can update the student information by clicking on the 'Update' button, entering the information and clicking 'Save.'

	Children of Veterans Tuition Crant
	Academic Year 2017 - 2018
	Update Student Information
Last Name	
First Name	
Middle	
Address	
City	
,	
State	Michigan 🗸
Zip Code	
Home Phone Number	
Cell Phone Number	
Email Addross	
Elitali Address	
Date Of Birth	
Gender	Female 🗸
	SAVE CANCEL

Comments

School Users can add a text comment to a student record and click 'Save.' Comment will appear in the student's 'Transaction History.'

	Comments	
1		0
		~
	SAVE CANCEL	

Application Information

The 'Application Information' section displays many of the fields that MiSSG uses to evaluate CVTG eligibility for the selected academic year.

	Application Inf	formation	
Current Institution Fall Institution Winter Institution	TRANSPORT OF	Spring Institution Summer Institution	
Convicted of felony involving assault, injury or death Residency Override Birth Certificate on File Proof of Total/Permanent Disability or Death Due to Service-Incurred Causes on File Default/Refund Owed on State Aid GPA Met SAP Met	No Yes Yes No	Citizenship Override Veteran was a Michigan Resident Discharge Certificate on File Death Certificate on File Maximum Assistance Override Eligibility Override Reached Maximum Assistance	Yes Yes
FAFSA Data (If available) Student State of Legal Residence Student Residence Date US Citizenship	MI 01/01/2012 US Citizen UPDATE APPLICATION	Parent State of Legal Residence Parent Residence Date Dependency Status	MI 01/01/2012 Dependent

The fields displayed in the 'Application Information' include the following:

- Convicted of felony involving assault, injury, or death
 - Student will be ineligible for CVTG because of the "Convicted of a Felony" reason if 'Yes."
- Residency Override
 - Student will be considered to meet Michigan residency requirements for program eligibility by MiSSG if 'Yes.'
- Birth Certificate on File
 - o Yes: The applicant's (student) birth certificate is on file with SSG.
 - No: The applicant's (student) birth certificate is not on file with SSG.
 - Proof of Total/Permanent Disability or Death Due to Service-Incurred Causes on file
 - Yes: Proof of total and permanent disability or death due to service-incurred cause is on file with SSG.
 - No: Proof of total and permanent disability or death due to service-incurred cause is not on file with SSG.
- Default/Refund Owed on State Aid
 - The student will be ineligible for CVTG because of the "Default or Refund Owed on State Financial Aid" reason if 'Yes.'
- GPA Met
 - The student did not obtain a GPA of 2.25, monitored annually at the end of Spring and is ineligible for CVTG because of the "GPA Requirement Not Met" reason if 'No.'
- SAP Met
 - Student did not maintain Satisfactory Academic Progress (SAP) and is ineligible for CVTG because of the "Satisfactory Academic Progress Not Met" reason if 'No.'
- Student State of Legal Residence
 - o State that MiSSG uses to evaluate residency for the student if student isIndependent.
- Student Residence Date
 - o Date used by MiSSG to determine when the student became a Michigan resident.
 - U.S. Citizenship
 - o The citizenship type that MiSSG uses to evaluate if the student meets citizenship requirements.
- Citizenship Override
 - Student will be considered to meet citizenship requirements for program eligibility by MiSSG if 'Yes.'

•

- Veteran was a Michigan Resident
 - o Parent veteran meets Michigan residency requirements if 'Yes.'
 - Discharge Certificate on File
 - Yes: A copy of the veteran's discharge certificate (DD214) is on file with SSG.
 - o No: A copy of the veteran's discharge certificate (DD214) is not on file with SSG.
- Death Certificate on File
 - Yes: If deceased, a copy of the veteran's death certificate is on file with SSG.
 - o No: If deceased, a copy of the veteran's death certificate is not on file with SSG.
- Maximum Assistance Override
 - Professional judgment/special consideration was given to allow override on maximum assistance. Processed by SSG.
- Eligibility Override
 - MiSSG will ignore all CVTG Ineligible Reasons except "Ineligible Institution" when evaluating a student's CVTG Eligibility status.
- Reached Maximum Assistance
 - o The student will be ineligible for CVTG because of the "Maximum Assistance" reason if 'Yes.'
- Parent State of Legal Residence
 - o State that MiSSG uses to evaluate residency for the parent if student is Dependent.
- Parent Residence Date
 - o Date used by MiSSG to determine when the parent became a Michigan resident.
- Dependency Status
 - The status that MiSSG will use when determining eligibility. If blank, then the student could not be determined to be Dependent or Independent and will be Ineligible because of the "Application Incomplete" reason.

School Users may update the following information on the 'Update Application Information' page:

		Children of Veter Academic Yea	ans Tuition Grant Ir 2017 - 2018	
and the second second		Update Applicat	tion Information	
Convicted of felony involving assault, injury or death	No 💙		Citizenship Override	
Residency Override				
GPA Met	V			
SAP Met	V			
		SAVE	CANCEL	

• Convicted of felony involving assault, injury, or death

o If 'Yes,' then the student will be CVTG Ineligible due to the "Convicted of a Felony" reason. Residency Override

- o If checked, the student will not be Ineligible for the "Student Not MI Resident" reason.
- o Note: This override will impact all other program records that the student has in the same
- academic year.
- GPA Met
 - o If blank (NULL) or 'Yes,' the student is considered to meet the GPA policy for CVTG.
 - $_{\rm O}$ $\,$ If 'No,' the student will be Ineligible for CVTG for the "GPA Requirement Not Met' reason. SAP Met
 - o If blank (NULL) or 'Yes,' the student is considered to meet the SAP policy for CVTG.
- If 'No,' the student will be Ineligible for CVTG for the "Satisfactory Academic Progress Not Met"

reason.

- Note: This selection will impact all other program records that the student has in the same academic year.
- Citizenship Override
 - o If checked, the student will not be Ineligible for the "Citizenship Status" reason.
 - Note: This override will impact all other program records that the student has in the same academic year.

Deceased or Disabled Veteran's Service Information

Deceased or Disabled Veteran's Service Information is completed by the student in MiSSG at <u>www.michigan.gov/missg.</u>

	Deceased or Disabled Veteran's Service Information	
Name of Veteran Date of Entry into service Date of Separation	Military Service Number US Dept. of Veterans Affairs Claim Number	1
Veteran Is Address Of Veteran City State	Total and permanently disabled due to service-incurred causes	

Note: This section is read-only for School Users.

Reimbursement Information

The 'Reimbursement Information' section displays information about remaining award data and existing reimbursements for the selected academic year.

and the second se	to Tay and the	Reimbursement Information	
Annual Amount Remaining	\$1,400.00		
Lifetime Amount Remaining	\$4,200.00		
Years Remaining (including current year)	2		

- Annual Amount Remaining
 - The maximum amount of CVTG funding a student may still receive in the selected academic year.
- Lifetime Amount Remaining
 - o The maximum cumulative amount of CVTG funding that the student may still receive.
- Years Remaining (including the current year)
 - The maximum number of academic years that a student may still receive CVTG funds, including the current year.



From this section, School Users with a minimum CVTG security level of Update 1 may also request additional reimbursement for an already existing reimbursement request by clicking the 'Reimbursement Request' button and following the instructions for Requesting Additional Funds on page 27.

Payment Information

The 'Payment Information' displays all CVTG payments for the student and includes the following fields:

- Term
 - o The term that the award is associated with.
- Aid Program
 - o The aid program that the award is for.
- Institution
 - o The institution that was paid on the student's behalf.
- Enrollment
 - The reported enrollment status of the student for the awarded term.
- Status
 - o The status message displayed depends on where the award is in the payment cycle.
- Ready To Pay
 - o The award has been submitted successfully, but funds have not yet been dispersed to the institution.
- Paid
 - The award's funds have been dispersed to the institution.
- Amount
 - o The total amount of the term's award with the displayed Status.
- Total
 - o The sum of all Amounts for the selected academic year, regardless of Term, Institution, or Status.

		Payment Info	rmation		
Term	Aid Program	Institution	Enrollment	Status	Amount
Fall	CVTG		Full-time	Paid	1400.00
				Total	1400.00

Program Totals

The 'Program Totals' displays the 'Total Cumulative Paid,' which is the sum of all CVTG funds the student has been awarded across all academic years.

Program Totals
Total Cumulative Paid \$7000.00

CVTG Reimbursement Request

To request reimbursement, click the 'Children of Veterans Tuition Grant' menu item on the left navigation bar. Then click on 'Reimbursement Request.'



Select a term/semester to request reimbursement for and click the 'Reimbursement Roster' button.



Your roster will show all eligible CVTG students at your institution who are able to have a reimbursement request submitted for them for the term selected.

	358	Date OF Sinh	Palmfurse
	in the		**Student reached maximum award.
-	1111	and a	REQUEST REIMBURSEMENT
	100.00		**Student reached maximum award.
	and the second		REQUEST REIMBURSEMENT
1.00	0.000	0.000	REQUEST REIMBURSEMENT
	100	272	"Student reached maximum award.
1.01	10000	in the second	**Student reached maximum award.
			REQUEST REIMBURSEMENT
			REQUEST REIMBURSEMENT
-	10.000	- Britters	REQUEST REIMBURSEMENT
		1224	

If you want to refine the displayed list of students who are available for reimbursement, there are two methods:

- 1. You may omit those students who already had a request submitted for Fall by clicking the 'Student Selection' radio button labeled 'Students without a Fall Reimbursement.'
 - Click the 'All Students' radio button to include the omitted records.

	2017-2018 Fall Reimbursement Ro Children of Veterans Tuition Gra	oster nt
	38 Students Available for Reimburse	ement
Filter:	APPLY FILTER	REMOVE FILTER
Student S	election: \bigcirc All Students \bigcirc Students without a F	all reimbursement
	Page	

- 1. Entering a last name or Social Security number into the Filter field to omit students who do not match the criteria and clicking the 'Apply Filter' button.
 - Click the 'Remove Filter' button to include the omitted records.

	2017-2018 Fall Reimbursement Ro Children of Veterans Tuition Gra	oster nt
	38 Students Available for Reimburse	ement
Filter:	APPLY FILTER	REMOVE FILTER
Student	Selection: \bigcirc All Students \bigcirc Students without a F	Fall reimbursement
	Page	

Click the 'Request Reimbursement' button for the student you want to request reimbursement for.

Num	 Date Of Birth	Reimburse
And a state of the		**Student reached maximum award.

To submit a reimbursement request on the 'CVTG Reimbursement Request' page:

- 1. Select the student's enrollment status from the 'Enrollment Status' drop down box if different than displayed.
- 2. Enter the total amount of tuition, in whole dollars, that you are requesting a reimbursement for in the 'Amount' field.
- 3. Click the 'Save' button.

Home Reimbursement Request(CVTG) X		CVTG Reimburs Academ 2017-201	ement Request ic Year 8 - Fall
		TOTALS REMAINING: Annual Amount Remaining: Lifetime Amount Remaining: Years Remaining (including current year):	1400.00 4200.00 2
		Enrollment Status 2 Amount 3 SAVE	FullTime 🗹 *Student paid under this enrollment status for another program.

Requesting Additional Funds

An additional reimbursement request can be made from the 'Reimbursement Request' screen as normal or directly from the student's current-year CVTG record.

- 1. Navigate to the student's 'Quick View' record.
- 2. Click the current-year CVTG record.

Quick View	
SSN Quick View:	
G0 (1)	
	l
Existing MCS/MTG	
MCS/MTG 2017 - 2018	
MCS/MTG 2016 - 2017	
MCS/MTG 2014 - 2015	
Existing Grants/Scholarships	
CVTG 2017 - 2018 🧹 2	
CVTG 2016 - 2017	
CVTG 2015 - 2016	
Transaction History	
Payment History	
FAFSA Data	

- 3. Scroll down the student's record until you see 'Reimbursement Information.'
- 4. Click on the 'Reimbursement Request' button.

	Reimbursement Information
Annual Amount Remaining Lifetime Amount Remaining Years Remaining (including current year)	\$1,400.00 \$4,200.00 2
Fall Reimbursement Data: Amount	REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST

- 5. Enter total additional award amount that exceeds the existing CVTG reimbursement requests for that semester/term in the 'Amount' field.
- 6. Click the 'Save' button.

CVTG-Reimburs Academ 2017-201	ement Request ic Year 18 - Fall
TOTALS REMAINING: Annual Amount Remaining: Lifetime Amount Remaining: Years Remaining (including current year):	1400.00 4200.00 2
Enrollment Status 5 Amount	FullTime 💟 *Student paid under this enrollment status for another program.
6 SAVE	CANCEL

Multiple Reimbursement Requests

Reimbursement Information Screen

When multiple requests for reimbursements exist for the same semester/term on a student's record, you will see all entries in the student's record under 'Reimbursement Information.'

- 1. Request for reimbursement for Fall semester in the amount of \$1,400.
- 2 Additional request for reimbursement for Fall semester in the amount of \$1,400.

	Reimbursement Information
Annual Amount Remaining Lifetime Amount Remaining	\$0.00 \$5,600.00
Years Remaining (including current year)	3
Fall Reimbursement Data: Amount	REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST
Fall Reimbursement Data:	
Amount	\$1,400.00

When multiple requests for reimbursement in different Statuses exist for the same semester/term on a student's record, you will see the Amounts separated by Status in the 'Payment Information' section.

There are now two payments showing:

- 1. This award has already had funds dispersed to the institution.
- 2 This award has not had funds dispersed yet.

	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	Payment Information	0.72 2			
Term	Aid Program	Institution	Enrollment	Status	-	Amount
Fall	CVTG	and the second se	Full-time	ReadyToPay		1400.00
Fall	CVTG		Full-time	Paid	-	1400.00
				Total	2800.00	

After the additional request for reimbursement is paid, the entries in the 'Payment Information' section will consolidate under the Status of 'Paid,' but the individual requests will still display separately in the 'Reimbursement Information' section.



Remove a Non-Paid CVTG Reimbursement Request

To remove a student's CVTG reimbursement request:

- 1. Navigate to the student's 'Quick View' record.
- 2. Click on the current-year CVTG record.

Quick View	
SSN Qui	ick View:
	G0
Existing M	CS/MTG
MCS/MTG 2	017 - 2018
MCS/MTG 2	016 - 2017
MCS/MTG 2	014 - 2015
Existing Gr	ants/Scholarships
CVTG 2017	- 2018 2
CVTG 2016	- 2017
CVTG 2015	- 2016
Transaction H	listory
Payment Histo	огу
FAFSA Data	

- 1. Scroll down the student's record until you see 'Reimbursement Information.'
- 2. Click on the 'Delete' button to remove the request. The corresponding award must still be in the 'Ready To Pay' Status; otherwise, the 'Delete' button will be unavailable.
 - a. After the previous request has been removed, a new reimbursement request can be made.

	Reimbursement Information
Annual Amount Remaining	\$0.00
Lifetime Amount Remaining	\$8,400.00
Years Remaining (including current year)	4
Fall Reimbursement Data: Amount	DELETE REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST
Fall Reimbursement Data	DELETE
	\$1,400,00

Refunding Paid CVTG Reimbursements

Institutions should never send refunds or other return funds to SSG without first having specifically received a billing notice. Any differences in aggregate amounts awarded and paid are designed to net out naturally over the course of the four quarterly payments.

To reduce an existing award, a Refund Adjustment must be applied to the award. Navigate to the student's record:

1. Click on 'Payment History' in the 'Quick View.'



- 2. Locate the academic year and corresponding payment that needs to be refunded on the list of existing payments.
- 3. Click the underlined amount for the award to navigate to the 'Enter Adjustment' screen where the refund adjustment can be performed.

Note: Only School Users with CVTG Administrator 1 security rights can use the 'Enter Adjustment' screen.

Note: Adjustments may only be made for current-year awards. If a prior-year needs to be adjusted, please email <u>mistudentaid@michigan.gov</u>.

	Stu	dent Payment History			1
	2	Student Information			
	Name Address City,State,Zip Home Phone Number Date of Birth Email Address Gender MiSSG ID CEPI ID Converted Check Count				
	Acad	emic Year 2017 - 2018			
Date	Program	Institution	Term	Туре	Amount
2017/11/30	Children of Veterans Tuition Grant		Fall	Paymen	<u>\$1400.00</u>

From the 'Enter Adjustment' screen:

- Verify that the 'Enrollment Status' field is still accurate.
 Enter the total amount of tuition, in whole dollars, in the 'Payment Adjustment Amount' field that you are reducing the award by.
 Click the 'Save' button.

Enter Ad Fall 201	justment 7 - 2018
School:	
Program:	сутс
Amount Paid (including any prior paid adjustments and ready to pay payments):	1400.00
Enrollment Status	Full-time 🔽 🌙
Payment Adjustment Amount	2
3 SAVE	CANCEL

Michigan Competitive Scholarship (MCS) Features

School Profile

The MCS School Profile is displayed for the current academic year. To view the School Profile for an alternative academic year, select the academic year from the Choose Academic Year field. To update the school profile, click the 'Update' button, then update the information, and click the 'Save' button. Information that can be updated within the school profile are:

- School Branch
- Vendor ID
- Tax Identification Number (TIN)
- School Name, Address, Phone Number, Fax Number, Contact Name, Contact Title, Contact Email Address, Phone Number, and Fax Number

A primary and secondary contact can be listed. The primary contact should be the person at the institution who works closely with the MCS program. The secondary contact should be the person who assists the primary with MCS. Within the School Profile, a user can also view the institution's Transaction History, Payment History, and Budget. The budget amounts are updated yearly with Tuition and Fees/Room and Board. MiSSG requires prior year institutional budgets when calculating current year awards. MiSSG begins loading ISIRs and making tentative awards to students in late fall. Since institutional budgets are often not finalized until the following summer, prior year budgets must be used.

Example: 2019-20 ISIRs begin loading in October/November 2018. 2019-20 academic budgets are not finalized until June/July 2019.

Institutional budgets must be entered in MiSSG by late-September. For private non-profit institutions, budgets must be entered for both MCS and MTG.

MCS Payment History

The Payment History displays a summary of information for all payments and adjustments at the institution for MCS. By default, payments and adjustments for the current academic year are displayed. To view prior academic years, select the year from the 'Change Academic Year' option.

Home Payment	History(MC5) X						
		Payr	nent History				
Current Balance: \$0.0	0					Change Academic Year	2016-2017
		Academi	c Year 2016-2017				
Date	Batch Number	Warrant/EFT Number	Program	Quarter	Туре	Payment	Amount
8/1/2017	Q45000121317	065273508	MCS	4	Q4 Payment	\$612.2	75.00
5/16/2017	Q35000113617	065110152	MCS	3	Q3 Payment	\$311,3	\$8.00
2/21/2017	Q25000105217	064917885	MCS	2	Q2 Payment	\$930,4	41.00
11/21/2016	Q15000132616	064721934	MCS	-1	Q1 Payment	\$1,556,	529.00
					Total:	\$3,410,	733.00

MCS Clear Ineligible Reasons

The Clear Ineligible Reasons displays a listing of students based on ineligible reasons of:

- Citizenship Status
- Non-Michigan Resident
- Loan Default and/or Refund Owed on Federal Financial Aid
- Satisfactory Academic Progress Not Met or GPA Requirement Not Met

The quantity of students on each list is next to each ineligible reason. In the example below, 62 students at the institution are currently not eligible due to Non-Michigan Resident status and two due to Loan Default. When one of the ineligible reasons is selected, it will provide the student SSN, name, address, and a checkbox. If your institution has documentation on file to clear the student of the ineligibility reason, check the box to do an override, and click on the 'Save' button.



MCS Certification

Exact dates for a term's certification request window are promoted through GovDelivery messages to aid administrators; however, estimated availability is Fall-September, Spring-January, and Summer-June. The certification process is conducted for the current academic year. The two methods of certifying awards in MiSSG are uploading a file to process awards in batch or using the online interface to process awards individually.

MCS Certification Rosters

Each MCS award is required to be certified prior to being included in quarterly payment files.

Awards can be certified with an uploaded text file that the institution can create from the Download Roster File. The uploaded file must meet the specifications listed in the MCS and MTG Upload Certification Roster File Format which is available at <u>www.michigan.gov/missg</u> in the 'MiSSG File Formats for College Administrators' section.

Alternatively, certification may occur for students individually by using the online interface method. To do so, navigate to the Certification menu item under the Michigan Competitive Scholarship menu, select a term, and click the 'Certification Roster' button.

Download Certification Roster

The user selects a term and selects 'Download Roster' and the Verify Criteria interface is displayed.



The user selects 'Download File' and the File Requests interface is displayed. The file's status is displayed as "File request has been received and is awaiting processing" until it is ready for downloading. The user can refresh the File Request interface (or may select 'File Requests' from the main menu) until the download icon is displayed for the requested file. The file status will display as "The file has completed successfully." The user can save the file to their computer.

A student is in the Download Certification Roster file if a payment record exists for the term. The layout of the Download Certification Roster file is Comma Separated Values (CSV) and all fields are delimited by a comma (,) and a Carriage Return Line Feed (CRLF) at the end of each row. A student is contained in the Download Certification Roster file if a payment record exists for the term in a status of "Ready to Certify." Below is the CSV file format.

To complete certification, the file can be processed through the upload feature.

Download Certi	fication File La	ayout - used to identify who is available for the school to
ertify for the term		A DAME AND A DAME AND A DAME AND A DAMA AND A
The format for	the file is "Comn	na Separated Values" (CSV)
All fields are de	elimited by a con	nma (,)
 Carriage Return 	m Line Feed (CR	(LF) at the end of each row
Field Name	Туре	Field Description
Academic Year	Numeric	Award Year (all records in the file contain the same value) Uses ending year - if the acyear is 2014-2015 this field will contain 2015
	-	Term being certified (all records in file contain the same value)
Payment Term	Alphanumeric	Valid values include: "Fall" "Winter" "Spring" "Summer"
School OE Code	Alphanumeric	School OE Code (all records in file will contain same value)
Aid Program	Alphanumeric	Aid Program being awarded (all records in file contain the same value) Valid values include: "MCS"
	-	"MTG"
SSN	Numeric	Student's Social Security Number
Last Name	Alphanumeric	Student's Last Name
First Name	Alphanumeric	Student's First Name
Middle Initial	Alphanumeric	Student's Middle Initial
Enroliment Status	Alphanumeric	Valid values include: "FT" - Full-time
Award Amount	Numeric	Student's Award Amount for the term - will contain decimal
		Student's Grade Level
Grade Level	Numeric	Valid values include: '0" - 1 st Year, Never Attended '1" - 1 st Year, Attended Before '2" - 2 nd Year, Sophomore '3" - 3" Year, Sophomore '4" - 4 ^{sh} Year, Senior '4" - 5 th Year, Senior '6" - 5 th Year, Other Undergraduate '6" - Graduate/Professional '7" - Continuing Graduate/Professional
Check Count Remaining	Numeric	Student's remaining check count - will contain decimal
Federal EEC	Numeric	Student's Estimated Family Contribution (EFC)

Upload Certification Roster

The layout of the Upload Certification Roster File is "Comma Separated Values" (CSV), fields are delimited by a comma (,) and there is a Carriage Return Line Feed (CRLF) at the end of each row.

			and some of	
Th All Ca	Id Certification Fil Irm e format for the file is fields are delimited I rriage Return Line F	e Layout – used s "Comma Separa by a comma (,) eed (CRLF) at the	d to submit ated Value e end of ea	t data to MiSSG to certify student awards s° (CSV) ach row
MAX	Field Name	Туре	Req	Field Description
4	Academic Year	Numeric	Y	Award Year (all records in the file must contain the same value) Use ending year - if the acyear is 2014-2015 this field must contain 2015)
6	Payment Term	Alphanumeric	Y	Term being Certified (all records in file must contain the same value) Valid values include: "Fall" "Winter" "Spring" "Summer"
6	School OE Code	Alphanumeric	Y	School OE Code (all records in file must contain same value)
10	Aid Program	Alphanumeric	Y	Aid Program being awarded (all records in file must contain same value) Valid values include: "MCS"
9	SSN	Numeric	Y	Student's Social Security Number
18	Last Name	Alphanumeric	Y	Student's Last Name
20	First Name	Alphanumeric	Y	Student's First Name
1	Middle Initial	Alphanumeric	2	Student's Middle Initial
2	Enrollment Status	Alphanumeric	Y	Student's Enrollment Status for term Valid Values include: "FT" = Full-time "TT" = 3:4-time "HT" = Half-time "LT" = Less than half-time "NE" = Not Enrolled
7	Award Amount	Numeric	Y	School's Award Amount Can contain a decimal – for example, if sending an award amount for \$915, 915.00 will process the same way as 915
1	Certification	Alphanumeric	Y.	Certification Status Valid values include: "Y" – Yes "N" – Nn

MAX Len	Field Name	Туре	Req	Field Description
1	No Award Reason	Alphanumeric	Reg if Certification Status = "N"	Reason student is not receiving award Valid values include: "H" – Less than Half-time "N" – Not Enrolled – Term "C" – Co-op "S" – SAP Not Met "G" – GPA Not Met "G" – Overaward "L" – Leave of Absence "V" – Verification Incomplete "I" – Incarcerated "D" – Declined "P" – Ineligible Program "T" – Other
14	Reason Award Amount Lowered	Alphanumeric	Req if Award Amount Lowered	School reason award amount was lowered Valid Values include: "Overaward" "Other" "Other"

The user selects a term and selects 'Upload Roster' and the Verify Criteria interface is displayed. The user browses to the file they wish to upload, then selects the 'Upload' button. Once the user selects the 'Upload' button, the File Request screen will be displayed. The file's status is displayed as "File has been received and is awaiting processing" until it has completed uploading.

		File Requests				
Sele	ct Institution:					
File Type	Request Date	Status	User Name	Aid Program	Term	Download
Download Certification Roster	06-15-2017	System errors were found.		Michigan Competitive Scholarship	Fall	
Upload TIP Reimbursement Request 2016- 2017	05-11-2017	The File has been processed but errors were found.		Tuition Incentive Program	Summer	
Download Reimbursement Roster 2016- 2017	05-08-2017	The File has completed successfully.		Tuition Incentive Program	Summer	
Download Certification Roster	02-16-2017	System errors were found.		Michigan Competitive Scholarship	Fall	
Download Reimbursement Roster 2016- 2017	02-15-2017	The File has completed successfully.		Tuition Incentive Program	Spring	

It is important that the aid administrator checks the file request to verify if the file was successful or not. The status "The file has completed successfully" will display if there were no rejected records. Non-rejected records will have processed though. "The file has been processed, but errors were found" status will display if there were rejected records.

To find out what errors are within a file, click on the status message. The status will indicate the line the error was found on and the cause of the error. The "System errors were found" status message will display if there was a problem with the file's layout. No records or awards were processed if this displays.

		Processing Messages
		Number of Records Read from File = 481
Line:162 Error	The Award Ar	nount exceeds the system's calculated award amount for the associated Enrollment Status.
	Line:165 Error	- The Reduced Award Amount was missing a Reduced Reason.
		Upload Students contained errors.

A record will be rejected for the following:

Reject Reason Displayed in MiSSG	Meaning
Invalid XX value	Invalid data
Required fields not populated	Required fields not populated
Matching record not found for term certified	No match on SSN
Aid Program not valid for SSN	No match on Aid Program for the uploaded SSN
Inst OE Code in record does not match user info	No match on Institution OE Code
Payment terms are different	No match on Payment Term
First Name in MiSSG does not match	No match on First Name
Last Name in MiSSG does not match	No match on Last Name
ACYear is not current ACYear	Academic Year value in the file is not the current
Matching payment is not "Ready to Certify"	Payment Status on database is not "Ready to Certify"
"Award Amount" cannot equal 0 if student is certified as "Yes"	Payment amount is "0" and Certification status in file is "Y"
"Award Amount" cannot be greater than 0 if student is certified as "No"	Payment amount is greater than "0" and Certification status in file is "N"
The "Award Amount" exceeds maximum award	The "Award Amount" cannot exceed the calculated award amount for the selected enrollment status
No Award Reason does not match "Enrollment Status"	If "No Award Reason" = "H" then "Enrollment Status" must = "LT" OR if "No Award Reason" = "N" then "Enrollment Status" must = "NE"
"Enrollment Status" does not match student certified as "Yes"	"Enrollment Status" must be "FT," "TT," or "HT" if Certification Status is "Y"

Payment will not be made for a line if any errors exist. The only exception is "No matching payment was found with a status of 'Ready to Certify.' This error is generally thrown when a second attempt is made to certify an award that was already successfully certified by a previous upload file.

Online Certification

Completing certification through the Online Certification process is a slower process compared to utilizing the Upload File process. Using Online Certification is a manual process where students are processed individually. The user indicates to certify from Pending to Yes or No. The Enrollment Status is selected. If the award needs to be reduced or canceled, this is indicated in the field. A reason must be provided when reducing awards, i.e.:

- Overaward
- Other Gift Aid
- Other

Zero award (\$0) reasons must also have a reason given which may be any of the following:

- Less Than Half-time
- Not Enrolled
- Со-ор
- SAP Not Met
- GPA Not Met
- Overaward
- Leave of Absence
- Verification Incomplete
- Incarcerated
- Declined
- Ineligible Program
- Other

Adjusting MCS Awards

If an award needs to be adjusted after the certification process is complete, it can be adjusted in the Student Payment History. Enter the student's information in the MiSSG search options or Quick View. Click on 'Payment History' and select the award that needs to be updated.

ADD PAYMENT							
Date	Program	Institution	Term	Туре	Amount		
2017/02/13	Michigan Competitive Scholarship	and the second second	Spring	Payment	\$318.00		
2016/10/26	Michigan Competitive Scholarship		Fall	Payment	\$318.00		

Select the adjustment type, a Disbursement or Refund. A Disbursement is selected when more funds are being requested. For example, if a student was certified incorrectly at half-time and should be full-time, select the correct enrollment level, then the Disbursement section, and then indicate in the Payment Adjustment Amount field the difference between what is currently paid and what the amount is increasing to.

For instance, if a student is half-time at \$159, but should be full-time, select full-time for the enrollment status, Disbursement, then adjustment amount of \$159 (\$159+\$159=\$318 full-time semester award amount). If a student's award needs to be canceled or reduced, select the correct Enrollment Status (if different, then select Refund and finally enter the amount that the award needs to be reduced by).



Requesting Reinstatement

A student is on the Request Reinstatement interface if they were certified as 'No' for the term. To request reinstatement for one or more of these students, navigate to the Request Reinstatement menu item under the Michigan Competitive Scholarship and select the term of the award to make a request for, then select the checkbox for the student(s) and click the 'Save' button. This does not guarantee that an award can then be certified and paid on the account. Once a request is made, it is up to the discretion of our office whether the award will be released. If the award is released, the student will appear on the certification roster as normal.

Reporting GPA and SAP

Students must meet and maintain Satisfactory Academic Progress (SAP), as monitored by your institution. Students are eligible to receive program funds while in conditional SAP. For monitoring Grade Point Average (GPA), MCS requires a 2.0 GPA. GPA and SAP are to be monitored separately. The cumulative GPA for MCS is to be monitored annually. If the student is below the minimum required GPA, they are not eligible for the following year's award. If the student enrolls for Summer, and the cumulative GPA increases and the student meets the minimum GPA required, then the award for the following year may be given.

If a student does not meet the GPA or SAP requirements, go into the student record and select the 'Update Application Information' button. Use the scroll bar to select NO for the appropriate selection of SAP Met or MCS GPA Met and select the 'Save' button.

	u.	Jpdate App	lication Informatio	n		
Residency Override				_		-
			Out of District			
		- 1	Undergraduate Override			
			Grade Level	1st Year, Never Attended	~	
			Bachelors Degree	No 🔽		
NSLDS Override			Degree/Certificate	1st Bachelors Degree	×	
Default/Refund Owed on State Aid	No		Master/Doctorate	No 🗸		
Citizenship Override			SAP Met	~		
Dependency Status	Dependent	~	MCS GPA Met			
Federal EFC	0		EFC Update Reason	~		
HS Diploma or Equivalent	High School Diploma		High School	0		~
			High School Graduation Year	2018		
	High School Graduation Month	6				
	Common of	SAVE	CANCE	EL.		

Determining 4th Quarter Payment and Balancing

Institutions can project the amount expected to receive or be owed back to our office during the 4th Quarter using the equation below. Since MCS and MTG are aggregate programs, the institution certifies the enrollment of awardees and receives a quarterly percentage of their total aggregate amount.

The equation:

(Total Award) - (Total Payment Amount) = 4th Quarter Payment Amount Total Award = {Sum of all awards for program across all semesters for current-year} Total Payment Amount = [1st Quarter Payment + 2nd Quarter Payment + 3rd Quarter Payment]

To gather this information, use the School Totals Report and look at the Total Award figure (calculated on the last page of the report). To find the Quarter 1 - Quarter 3 payment amounts, open the program's menu (Michigan Competitive Scholarship or Michigan Tuition Grant), then School Profile, then Payment History. The Payment Amount column indicates funds that were disbursed to your institution.

If you find a discrepancy between what you were expecting to receive and what you are projected to receive, please contact <u>mistudentaid@michigan.gov</u> or 1-888-447-2687. If your institution owes funds back, communication will be sent to your institution. If your institution is balanced and agrees with the amount listed within MiSSG, please send notification to <u>mistudentaid@michigan.gov</u> confirmingthis.
Michigan Tuition Grant (MTG) Features

School Profile

The MTG School Profile is displayed for the current academic year. To view the School Profile for an alternative academic year, select the academic year from the 'Choose Academic Year' field. To update the school profile, click the 'Update' button, then update the information, and click the 'Save' button.

Information that can be updated within the school profile includes:

- School Branch
- Vendor ID
- Tax Identification Number (TIN)
- School Name, Address, Phone Number, Fax Number, Contact Name, Contact Title, Contact Email Address, Phone Number, and Fax Number

A primary and secondary contact can be listed. The primary contact should be the person at the institution who works closely with the MTG program. The secondary contact should be the person who assists the primary with MTG. Within the School Profile, a user can also view the institution's Transaction History, Payment History, and Budget. The budget amounts are updated yearly with Tuition and Fees/Room and Board. MiSSG requires prior year institutional budgets when calculating current year awards. MiSSG begins loading ISIRs and making tentative awards to students in late fall. Since institutional budgets are often not finalized until the following summer, prior year budgets must be used.

Example: 2019-20 ISIRs begin loading in October/November 2018. 2019-20 academic budgets are not finalized until June/July 2019.

Institutional budgets must be entered in MiSSG by late-September. For private non-profit institutions, budgets must be entered for both MCS and MTG.

MTG Payment History

The Payment History displays a summary of information for all payments and adjustments at the institution for MTG. By default, payments and adjustments for the current academic year are displayed. To view prior academic years, select the year from the 'Change Academic Year' option.

Home Payment	History(MTG) ×						
		Payn	ient History				
Current Balance: \$0.00	0					Change Academic Year	2016-2017
-		Academic	Year 2016 2017	-			1
Date	Batch Number	Warrant/EFT Number	Program	Quarter	туре	Payment	Amount.
8/1/2017	Q45100221317	254817827	MTG	.4	Q4 Payment	\$54,487.00	
5/16/2017	Q35100213617	254552203	MTG	3	Q3 Payment	\$103,6	69.00
2/21/2017	Q25100205217	254133292	MTG	2	Q2 Payment	\$311,0	09.00
11/21/2016	Q15100232616	253800131	MTG	1	Q1 Payment	\$567,5	33.00
					Total:	\$1,035	698.00

MTG Clear Ineligible Reasons

The Clear Ineligible Reasons displays a listing of students based on ineligible reasons of:

- Citizenship Status
- Non-Michigan Resident
- Loan Default and/or Refund Owed on Federal Financial Aid
- Satisfactory Academic Progress Not Met or GPA Requirement Not Met

The quantity of students on each list is next to each ineligible reason. In the example below, six students at the institution are currently not eligible due to Non-Michigan Resident status and three due to Loan Default. When one of the ineligible reasons is selected, it will provide the student SSN, name, address, and a checkbox. If your institution has documentation on file to clear the student of the ineligibility reason, check the box to do an override, and click on the 'Save' button.

Clear Ineligible Reasons - Michigan Tuition Grant	
Academic Year 2017-2018	
Change Academic Year: Year 2017-2018	
Citizenship Status Non-Michigan Residen Loan Default and/or Refund Owed on Federal Financial Aid Satisfactory Academic Progress Not Met GPA Requirement Not Met	a)

MTG Certification

Exact dates for a term's certification request window are promoted through GovDelivery messages to aid administrators; however, estimated availability is Fall-September, Spring-January, and Summer-June. The certification process is conducted for the current academic year. The two methods of certifying awards in MiSSG are uploading a file to process awards in batch or using the online interface to process awards individually.

MTG Certification Rosters

Each MTG award is required to be certified prior to being included in quarterly payment files.

Awards can be certified with an uploaded text file that the institution can create from the Download Roster File. The uploaded file must meet the specifications listed in the <u>MCS and MTG Upload Certification Roster</u> <u>File Format</u> which is available at <u>www.michigan.gov/missg</u> in the 'MiSSG File Formats for College Administrators' section.

Alternatively, certification may occur for students individually by using the online interface method. To do so, navigate to the Certification menu item under the Michigan Tuition Grant menu, select a term, and click the 'Certification Roster' button.

Download Certification Roster

The user selects a term and selects 'Download Roster' and the Verify Criteria interface is displayed.

	Verify Criteria
Institution:	
Aid Program:	Michigan Tuition Grant
Term:	Fall
You are about to download the Certificat based softwar If you do not want to downl	ion Roster in a Comma Separated Value (CSV) file format that can be loaded into your school re for processing (<u>click here</u> to view the file layout specifications). oad a certification file, you can certify online via the Certification menu option.

The user selects 'Download File' and the File Requests interface is displayed. The file's status is displayed as "File request has been received and is awaiting processing" until it is ready for downloading. The user can refresh the File Request interface (or may select File Requests from the main menu) until the download icon is displayed for the requested file. The file status will display as "The file has completed successfully." The user can save the file to their computer.

A student is in the Download Certification Roster file if a payment record exists for the term. The layout of the Download Certification Roster file is Comma Separated Values (CSV) and all fields are delimited by a comma (,) and a Carriage Return Line Feed (CRLD) at the end of each row. A student is contained in the Download Certification Roster file if a payment record exists for the term in a status of "Ready to Certify." Below is the CSV file format.

To complete certification, the file can be processed through the upload feature.

Download Certif	fication File La	ayout - used to identify who is available for the school to
setury for the term		
 The format for 	the file is "Comn	na Separated Values" (CSV)
 All fields are de Carriade Returned 	alimited by a con	nma (,) 21 E) at the end of each row
Field Name	Type	Field Description
Academic Year	Numeric	Award Year (all records in the file contain the same value)
		contain 2015
Payment Term	Alphanumeric	Term being certified (all records in file contain the same value) Valid values include: "Fall" "Winter"
		"Spring" "Summer"
School OE Code	Alphanumeric	School OE Code (all records in file will contain same value)
Aid Program	Alphanumeric	Aid Program being awarded (all records in file contain the same value) Valid values include: "MCS"
		"MTG"
SSN	Numeric	Student's Social Security Number
Last Name	Alphanumeric	Student's Last Name
First Name	Alphanumeric	Student's First Name
Middle Initial	Alphanumeric	Student's Middle Initial
Enroliment Status	Alphanumeric	Student's Enrollment Status for the term Valid values include: "FT" - Full-time
Award Amount	Numeric	Student's Award Amount for the term - will contain decimal
Grade Level	Numeric	Student's Grade Level Valid values includs: 10 ⁻ - 1 ⁴¹ Year, Never Attended 1 ⁻ - 15 ⁴⁷ rear, Schomore 3 ⁻ - 37 ⁴⁷ Vear, Schomore 3 ⁻ - 37 ⁴ Vear, Junior 4 ⁻ - 48 ⁴ Year, Senior 5 ⁻ - 5 ⁴ Year, Cher Undergraduate 1 ⁶ - 6 Graduate/Professional
Check Count Remaining	Numeric	Student's remaining check count - will contain decimal
Federal EFC	Numeric	Student's Estimated Family Contribution (EFC)

Page | 38

Upload Certification Roster

The layout of the Upload Certification Roster File is "Comma Separated Values" (CSV), fields are delimited by a comma (,) and there is a Carriage Return Line Feed (CRLF) at the end of each row.

_				
Jploa or a te Th All Ca	ad Certification Fil erm le format for the file is fields are delimited I arriage Return Line F	e Layout – used s "Comma Separa by a comma (,) eed (CRLF) at th	J to submit ated Value e end of er	: data to MiSSG to certify student awards s° (CSV) ach row
MAX	Field Name	Туре	Req	Field Description
4	Academic Year	Numeric	Y	Award Year (all records in the file must contain the same value) Use ending year - if the acyear is 2014-2015 this field must contain 2015)
6	Payment Term	Alphanumeric	Y	Term being Certified (all records in file must contain the same value) Valid values include: "Fall" "Winter" "Spring" "Summer"
6	School OE Code	Alphanumeric	Y	School OE Code (all records in file must contain same value)
10	Aid Program	Alphanumeric	Ŷ	Aid Program being awarded (all records in file must contain same value) Valid values include: "MCS" "MTG"
9	SSN	Numeric	Y	Student's Social Security Number
18	Last Name	Alphanumeric	Y	Student's Last Name
20	First Name	Alphanumeric	Y	Student's First Name
1	Middle Initial	Alphanumeric	1	Student's Middle Initial
2	Enrollment Status	Alphanumeric	Y	Student's Enrollment Status for term Valid Values include: "FT" = Full-time "TT" = 3/4-time "HT" = Half-time "LT" = Less than half-time "NE" = Not Enrolled
7	Award Amount	Numeric	Y	School's Award Amount Can contain a decimal – for example, if sending an award amount for \$915, 915.00 will process th same way as 915
1	Certification	Alphanumeric	Y	Certification Status Valid values include: "Y" – Yes "N" – No

MAX	Field Name	Туре	Req	Field Description
1	No Award Reason	Alphanumeric	Req if Certification Status = "N"	Reason student is not receiving award Valid values include: "H" – Less than Half-time "Y" – Not Enrolled – Term "Y" – Not Enrolled – Year "C" – Co-op "S" – SAP. Not Met "G" – GPA. Not Met "O" – Overaward "U" – Leave of Absence "V" – Verification Incomplete "J" – Incarcerated "D" – Declined "P" – Incligible Program "T" – Other
14	Reason Award Amount Lowered	Alphanumeric		School reason award amount was lowered Valid Values include: "Overaward" "Other Gift Aid" "Other Gift Aid"

The user selects a term and selects Upload Roster and the Verify Criteria interface is displayed. The user browses to the file they wish to upload, then selects the 'Upload' button. Once the user selects the 'Upload' button, the File Request screen will be displayed. The file's status is displayed as "File has been received and is awaiting processing" until it has completed uploading.

File Requests								
Sele	ct Institution:			Y				
File Type	Request Date	Status	User Name	Aid Program	Term	Download		
Upload Certification	02-02-2017	The File has been processed but errors were found.		Michigan Tuition Grant	Spring			
Upload Certification	02-02-2017	The File has been processed but errors were found.		Michig <mark>an</mark> Competitive Scholarship	Spring			
Upload TIP Reimbursement Request 2016- 2017	02-02-2017	The File has been processed but errors were found.		Tuition Incentive Program	Spring			
Download Certification Roster	01-18-2017	System errors were found.		Michigan Competitive Scholarship	Fall			
Download Certification Roster	01-18-2017	System errors were found.		Michigan Competitive Scholarship	Fall			

It is important that the aid administrator checks the file request to verify if the file was successful or not. The status "The file has completed successfully" will display if there were no rejected records. Non-rejected records will have processed though. "The file has been processed, but errors were found" status will display if there were rejected records.

To find out what errors are within a file, click on the status message. The status will indicate the line the error was found on and the cause of the error. The "System errors were found" status message will display if there was a problem with the file's layout. No records or awards were processed if this displays.

File Processing Information
File Date: 2/2/2017 File Name: CertUpload_2017020210591519.txt
Processing Messages
Number of Records Read from File = 589
- The Enrollment Status does not match student certified as "Yes".
- The Enrollment Status does not match student certified as "Yes".
Line:375 Error: - Last Name does not match.
Upload Students contained errors.

A record will be rejected for the following:

Reject Reason Displayed in MiSSG	Meaning
Invalid XX value	Invalid data
Required fields not populated	Required fields not populated
Matching record not found for term certified	No match on SSN
Aid Program not valid for SSN	No match on Aid Program for the uploaded SSN
Inst OE Code in record does not match user info	No match on Institution OE Code
Payment terms are different	No match on Payment Term
First Name in MiSSG does not match	No match on First Name
Last Name in MiSSG does not match	No match on Last Name
ACYear is not current ACYear	Academic Year value in the file is not the current
	Academic Year
Matching payment is not "Ready to	Payment Status on database is not "Ready to
Certify"	Certify"
"Award Amount" cannot equal 0 if	Payment amount is "0" and Certification status in
student is certified as "Yes"	file is "Y"
"Award Amount" cannot be	Payment amount is greater than "0" and
greater than 0 if student is certified as "No"	Certification status in file is "N"
The "Award Amount" exceeds maximum award	The "Award Amount" cannot exceed the
	calculated award amount for the selected
	enrollment status
No Award Reason does not match "Enrollment	If "No Award Reason" = "H" then "Enrollment
Status"	Status" must = "LT" OR if "No Award Reason" =
	"N" then "Enrollment Status" must = "NE"
"Enrollment Status" does not match student	"Enrollment Status" must be "FT," "TT," or "HT" if
certified as "Yes"	Certification Status is "Y"

Payment will not be made for a line if any errors exist. The only exception is "No matching payment was found with a status of 'Ready to Certify.' This error is generally thrown when a second attempt is made to certify an award that was already successfully certified by a previous upload file.

Online Certification

Completing certification through the Online Certification process is a slower process compared to utilizing the Upload File process. Using Online Certification is a manual process where students are processed individually. The user indicates to certify from Pending to Yes or No. The Enrollment Status is selected. If the award needs to be reduced or canceled, this is indicated in the field.

A reason must be provided when reducing awards, i.e.:

- Overaward
- Other Gift Aid
- Other

Zero award (\$0) reasons must also have a reason given which may be any of the following:

- Less Than Half-time
- Not Enrolled
- Со-ор
- SAP Not Met
- GPA Not Met
- Overaward
- Leave of Absence
- Verification Incomplete
- Incarcerated
- Declined
- Ineligible Program
- Other

Adjusting MTG Awards

If an award needs to be adjusted after the certification process is complete it can be adjusted in the Student Payment History. Enter the student's information in the MiSSG search options or Quick View. Click on 'Payment History' and select the award that needs to be updated.



Select the adjustment type, a Disbursement or Refund. A Disbursement is selected when more funds are being requested. For example, if a student was certified incorrectly at half-time and should be full-time, select the correct enrollment level, then the Disbursement section, and then indicate in the Payment Adjustment Amount field the difference between what is currently paid and what the amount is increasing to.

For instance, if a student is half-time at \$458, but should be full-time, select full-time for the enrollment status, Disbursement, then adjustment amount of \$457 (\$458+\$457=\$915 full-time semester award amount). If a student's award needs to be canceled or reduced, select the correct Enrollment Status (if different, then select Refund and finally enter the amount that the award needs to be reduced by).

	Enter Adjustment Fall 2016 - 2017
School:	
Program:	мтс
Enrollment Status	Half-time 🔽
Amount Paid (including any prior paid adjustments):	457.00
Adjustment Type	O Disbursement O Refund
Payment Adjustment Amount:	
6	SAVE CANCEL

Requesting Reinstatement

A student is on the Request Reinstatement interface if they were certified as 'No' for the term. To request reinstatement for one or more of these students, navigate to the Request Reinstatement menu item under the Michigan Tuition Grant and select the term of the award to make a request for, then select the checkbox for the student(s) and click the 'Save' button. This does not guarantee that an award can then be certified and paid on the account. Once a request is made, it is up to the discretion of our office whether the award will be released. If the award is released, the student will appear on the certification roster as normal.

Reporting SAP

Students must meet and maintain Satisfactory Academic Progress (SAP), as monitored by your institution. Students are eligible to receive program funds while in conditional SAP. If a student does not meet the SAP requirements, go into the student record and select the 'Update Application Information' button. Use the scroll bar to select NO for the appropriate selection of SAP Met and select the 'Save' button.

	Michigan Competiti Academi	ve Scholarship/Fu c Year 2017 2018	nition Grant 3
	Update Ap	plication Informat	ion
Residency Override		ISIR Date Override	0
State of Legal Residence	MI V	Cleared After Deadline Override	a
Residence Date	02/01/2012	Out of District	0
Parent State of Legal Residence	MI 🗹	Undergraduate Override	D .
Parent Residence Date	02/01/2012	Grade Level	
SSN Match Flag	SSN, Name, and DOB match	Bachelors Degree	No V
NSLDS Override		Degree/Certificate	1st Bachelors Degree
Default/Refund Owed on State Aid	No 💌	Master/Doctorate	No
Citizenship Override		SAP Met	
Dependency Status	Dependent.	MCS GPA Met	
Federal EFC	7986	EFC Update Reason	Image: Second se
HS Diploma or Equivalent	High School Diploma 💌	High School	
ACT/SAT Override	0	MCS Eligibility Override	
MTG Eligibility Override		Force MTG Only	
		High School Graduation Year	
		High School Graduation Month	6
	SAVE	CAN	GEL

Determining 4th Quarter Payment and Balancing

Institutions can project the amount expected to receive or be owed back to our office during the 4th Quarter using the equation below. Since MCS and MTG are aggregate programs, the institution certifies the enrollment of awardees and receives a quarterly percentage of their total aggregate amount.

The equation:

(Total Award) - (Total Payment Amount) = 4th Quarter Payment Amount Total Award = {Sum of all awards for program across all semesters for current-year} Total Payment Amount = [1st Quarter Payment + 2nd Quarter Payment + 3rd Quarter Payment]

To gather this information, use the School Totals Report and look at the Total Award figure (calculated on the last page of the report). To find the Quarter 1 - Quarter 3 payment amounts, open the program's menu (Michigan Competitive Scholarship or Michigan Tuition Grant), then School Profile, then Payment History. The Payment Amount column indicates funds that were disbursed to your institution.

If you find a discrepancy between what you were expecting to receive and what you are projected to receive, please contact <u>mistudentaid@michigan.gov</u> or 1-888-447-2687. If your institution owes funds back, communication will be sent to your institution. If your institution is balanced and agrees with the amount listed within MiSSG, please send notification to <u>mistudentaid@michigan.gov</u> confirmingthis.

Police Officer's and Fire Fighter's Survivor Tuition Grant (STG)

Features

School Profile

Contact information for your institution is stored in your school profile. It is important to keep this record up to date.

Contact information is program specific. If you have different staff working on different State of Michigan programs, you will need to provide separate contact information for each program under the 'School Profile' tab.

To view/update your profile information for STG, click the 'Survivor Tuition Grant' menu item on the left navigation bar. Then click on 'School Profile.'



STG Payment History

The Payment History displays information about STG payments made to your institution during the selected academic year.

To view the 'Payment History,' click the 'Survivor Tuition Grant' menu item on the left navigation bar. Then click on 'Payment History.'

55	G						
Exit MiSSG							
Missg							
Michigan Comp	etitive Scholarship						
Michigan Tuitio	n Grant						
Tuition Incentiv	re Program						
Children of Vete	erans Tuition Grant						
Survivor Tuition	n Grant						
Award Rules							
School Profile							
Payment Histor	Y						
Reimbursement	t Request						
Quick View							
		Pay	ment History				
Current Balance: N//	6					Change Academic Year	2017-2018
		Academi	c Year 2017 2018				
Date	Batch Number	Warrant/EFT Number	Program	Quarter	Туре	Payment	Amount
1/23/2018	Q15400102318	201801230231218	STG		Q1 Payment	\$7,23	0,00
Q					Total:	\$7,23	0.00
			CANCEL				

- Current Balance
 - Will only display a value after the Quarter 4 payment. Shows the difference between the total paid to the institution, total sum of all awards, and adjustments at year-end.
- Change Academic Year
 - o Only data for the selected academic year will display.
- Date
 - The date that the table entry occurred.
- Batch Number
 - The unique code assigned to the overall payment that this payment was included in.
- Warrant/EFT Number
 - The unique code assigned to this payment to an institution.
- Program
 - o The MiSSG program that the payment was generated for.
- Quarter
 - The fiscal quarter that this entry is associated with.
- Type
 - The type of action that describes this entry.
- Payment Amount
 - o The amount of funds assigned to this entry.
- Total
 - o The sum of all amounts of all entries.

View Students STG Records

To look up a STG student, click the "Quick View" menu item on the left navigation bar.

- 1. Enter the student's complete SSN.
- 2. Click the 'GO' button.



3. Click on the desired academic year for STG under 'Existing Grants/Scholarships.'



STG Application Status: Eligible and Ineligible Messages

At the top of the student's STG record, an eligibility status will be displayed for the academic year selected. Only students with the status 'Eligible' may have a reimbursement requested for them.



If the student's status is 'Ineligible,' then a reason(s) will also be displayed.

Survivor Tuition Grant Academic Year 2017 2018
Status: Ineligible Does Not Meet Poverty Level Birth Certificate/Adoption Papers Not on File Reason(s): Death Certificate Not on File Driver's License Not on File Tax Return Not on File

Ineligible Status Reason Descriptions

Application Age Cutoff Exceeded

If the 'Relationship to Deceased' is "Child," the student must apply for the first time prior to the 'Child Application Age Cutoff' age of 21.

Bachelor's Degree Received

The student must not have already received a bachelor's degree.

Birth Certificate/Adoption Papers Not on File

The 'Child' student must have a birth certificate/adoptions papers on file with SSG.

Citizenship Status

Student must be a U.S. citizen, permanent resident, or approved refugee.

Death Certificate Not on File

The student must have the deceased's death certificate on file with SSG.

Default on Federal Financial Aid

The student cannot be in default on Federal financial aid as reported on the FAFSA.

Default Owed on State Financial Aid

The student cannot be in default on State financial aid.

Does Not Meet Poverty Level

The student must meet the poverty level requirement as determined by SSG.

Driver's License Not on File

The student must have a driver's license on file with SSG.

Ineligible Institution

The student's 'Current Institution' field must be set to an institution that has 'Yes' in the Active field for STG on the 'School Profile' screen.

Marriage License Not on File

The 'Spouse' student must have a marriage license on file with SSG.

Maximum Credits Received

The student may not receive STG funds for more than 124 credits.

Maximum Semesters of Aid Received

The student may not receive STG funds in more than nine semesters.

Satisfactory Academic Progress Not Met

The student must maintain Satisfactory Academic Progress (SAP) as determined by the institution.

Student not MI Resident

The student must be a resident of Michigan for one year prior to application.

Tax Return Not on File

The student and/or parent must have a tax return on file with SSG.

Student Application

The student application consists of six sections:

- 1. Student Information
- 2. Comments
- 3. Application Information
- 4. Reimbursement Information
- 5. Payment Information
- 6. Program Totals



Student Information

School Users can update the student information by clicking on the 'Update' button, entering the information, and clicking 'Save.'

	Survivo Academic	r Tuition Gran Year 2017 - 20	t)18	
	Update St	udent Informat	ion	
Last Name First Name Middle Address City State Zip Code Home Phone Number Cell Phone Number Email Address Date Of Birth Gender	Michigan V			
	SAVE	C/	ANCEL	

Comments

School Users can add a text comment to a student record and click 'Save.' Comment will appear in the student's 'Transaction History.'



Application Information

The 'Application Information' section displays many of the fields that MiSSG uses to evaluate STG eligibility for the selected academic year.



The fields displayed in the 'Application Information' include the following:

- Answers to the questions from the student application:
 - Have you received a bachelor's degree?
 - As of today, are you married?
 - Are you currently serving on active duty in the U.S. Armed Forces for purposes other than training? Or are you a veteran of the U.S. Armed Forces?
 - Do you now have or will you have children who will receive more than half of their support from you between July 1, 2018 and June 30, 2019?
 - Do you have dependents (other than your children or spouse) who live with you and who receive more than half of their support from you, now and through June 30, 2019?
 - At any time since you turned age 13, were both your parents deceased, were you in foster care, or were you a dependent or ward of the court?
 - As determined by a court in Michigan, are you or were you an emancipated minor?
 - Does someone other than your parent or stepparent have legal guardianship of you, as determined by a court in Michigan?
 - At any time on or after July 1, 2017, did your high school or school district homeless liaison determine that you were an unaccompanied youth who was homeless or were self-supporting and at risk of being homeless?
 - At any time on or after July 1, 2017, did the director of an emergency shelter or transitional housing program funded by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development determine that you were an unaccompanied youth who was homeless or were self- supporting and at risk of being homeless?
 - At any time on or after July 1, 2017, did the director of a runaway or homeless youth basic center or transitional living program determine that you were an unaccompanied youth who was homeless or were self-supporting and at risk?
- FAFSA Dependency Status (if available)
 - Dependency status based on FAFSA information.
 - Note: The 'Calculated Dependency Status' field is what is used by MiSSG when evaluating eligibility.
- Birth Certificate/Adoption Papers on File
 - If the student is a 'Child' of the deceased:
 - Yes: The applicant's (student) birth certificate is on file with SSG.
 - No: The applicant's (student) birth certificate is not on file with SSG.
- Marriage License on File
 - If the student is a 'Spouse' of the deceased:
 - Yes: The applicant's (student) marriage license is on file with SSG.
 - No: The applicant's (student) marriage license is not on file with SSG.
- Driver's License on File
 - Yes: The student has a driver's license on file with SSG.
 - No: The student does not have a driver's license on file with SSG.
- Residency Override
 - Student will be considered to meet Michigan residency requirements for program eligibility by MiSSG if 'Yes.'
- Maximum Semester Override
 - Professional judgment/special consideration was given by SSG to allow student to remain eligible despite having exhausted remaining semesters of aid.
- Maximum Credits Override
 - Professional judgment/special consideration was given by SSG to allow student to remain eligible despite having exhausted remaining credits available for reimbursement.
- SAP Met
 - Student did not maintain Satisfactory Academic Progress (SAP) and is ineligible for STG because of the "Satisfactory Academic Progress Not Met" reason if 'No.'
- Calculated Dependency Status
 - The dependency status that MiSSG will use when determining eligibility.
- Death Certificate on File
- Yes: The deceased's death certificate is on file with SSG.

Page | 50

- No: The deceased's death certificate is not on file with SSG.
- Tax Returns on File
 - Yes: The student and/or parent's tax return is on file with SSG.
 - No: The student and/or parent's tax return is not on file with SSG.
- Meets Poverty Level
 - Yes: The student meets the poverty level requirement, as determined by SSG.
 - No: The student does not meet the poverty level requirement, as determined by SSG.
- Default/Refund Owed on State Aid
 - The student will be ineligible for STG because of the "Default or Refund Owed on State Financial Aid" reason if 'Yes.'
- Citizenship Override
 - Student will be considered to meet citizenship requirements for program eligibility by MiSSG if 'Yes.'
 Undergraduate Override
 - ^o Student will be considered an undergraduate for program eligibility purposes by MiSSG if 'Yes.'
- Eligibility Override

.

 MiSSG will ignore all STG Ineligible Reasons except "Ineligible Institution" when evaluating a student's STG Eligibility status.

School Users may update the following information on the 'Update Application Information' page:

	Surv	ivor Tuition Grant	
	Update A	pplication Information	
		Have you received a Bachelors degree?	No 🔽
		As of today, are you married?	No 🔽
Are you currently serving on active duty i	n the U.S. Armed Forces for purposes	other than training? Or are you a veteran of the U.S. Armed Forces?	No 💌
Do you now have or will you have children	who will receive more than half of th	eir support from you between July 1, 2017 and June 30, 2018?	No 🔽
Do you have dependents (other than yo	ur children or spouse) who live with y	you and who receive more than half of their support from you, now and through June 30, 2018?	No 💌
At any time since you turned age 13, were	both your parents deceased, were yo	ou in foster care or were you a dependent or ward of the court?	No 🔽
	As determined by a court in Mi	chigan, are you or were you an emancipated minor?	No 🔽
Does someone other than your par	ent or stepparent have legal guardia	nship of you, as determined by a court in Michigan?	No 🔽
At any time on or after July 1, 2 unaccom	016, did your high school or school o panied youth who was homeless or v	listrict homeless liaison determine that you were an vere self-supporting and at risk of being homeless?	No
At any time on or after July 1, 2016, dic Department of Housing and Urban Develop	I the director of an emergency shelten oment determine that you were an un	r or transitional housing program funded by the U.S. accompanied youth who was homeless or were self- supporting and at risk of being homeless?	No 💟
At any time on or after July 1, 2016, di determine that yo	d the director of a runaway or homele u were an unaccompanied youth who	ess youth basic center or transitional living program was homeless or were self-supporting and at risk?	No. V
Birth Certificate/Adoption Papers on File	Yes	Death Certificate on File	Yes
Marriage License on File	Yes	Tax Returns on File	Yes
Drivers License on File	Yes	Meets Poverty Level	Yes
		Default/Refund Owed on State Aid	No 🔽
Residency Override		Citizenship Override	
Maximum Semester Override		Undergraduate Override	
Maximum Credits Override		Eligibility Override	
SAP Met			
	SAVE	CANCEL	

- Have you received a bachelor's degree?
 - If 'Yes,' then the student will be STG Ineligible for the academic year due to the 'Bachelor's Degree Received' reason.
- Residency Override
 - o If checked, the student will not be Ineligible for the 'Student Not MI Resident' reason.
 - Note: This override will impact all other program records that the student has in the same academic year.

- SAP Met
 - o If blank (NULL) or 'Yes,' the student is considered to meet the SAP policy for STG.
 - o If 'No,' the student will be Ineligible for STG for the 'Satisfactory Academic Progress Not Met' reason.
 - Note: This selection will impact all other program records that the student has in the same academic year.
- Citizenship Override
 - o If checked, the student will not be Ineligible for the "Citizenship Status" reason.
 - Note: This override will impact all other program records that the student has in the same academic year.

Household Information

Household information is completed by the student in MiSSG at <u>www.michigan.gov/missg</u>.

Household Information				
Parent Name	Parent Social Security Number			
Parent Address	Parent Phone Number			
Parent City	Parent legal Michigan resident for past 12 consecutive months			
Parent State	Number of People in Household			
Parent Zip Code	Amount of income received from death benefits			

Note: This section is read-only for School Users.

Deceased Information

Deceased information is completed by the student in MiSSG at www.michigan.gov/missg.



Note: This section is read-only for School Users.

Reimbursement Information

The 'Reimbursement Information' section displays information about remaining award data and existing reimbursements for the selected academic year.

		Reimbursement Information
Credits Remaining	81.00	
Semester Remaining	6.00	

Credits Remaining

- The maximum number of credits that a student may still receive STG funds.
- Semester Remaining
 - o The maximum number of semesters that a student may still receive STG funds.

	Reimbursement Information
Credits Remaining Semester Remaining	81.00 6.00
Fall Reimbursement Data:	
Credit Hours	15.00
Amount	\$7,230.00

From this section, School Users with a minimum STG security level of Update 1 may also request additional reimbursement for an already existing reimbursement request by clicking the 'Reimbursement Request' button and following the instructions for Requesting Additional Funds on page 93.

Payment Information

The 'Payment Information' displays all STG payments for the student and includes the following fields:

- Term
 - The term that the award is associated with.
- Aid Program
 - The aid program that the award is for.
- Institution
- The institution that was paid on the student's behalf.
- Enrollment
 - The reported enrollment status of the student for the awarded term.
- Status
 The
 - The status message displayed depends on where the award is in the payment cycle.
 - Ready To Pay
 - The award has been submitted successfully, but funds have not yet been dispersed to the institution.
 - Paid
- The award's funds have been dispersed to the institution.
- Amount
- The total amount of the term's award with the displayed Status.
- Total
 - The sum of all Amounts for the selected academic year, regardless of Term, Institution, or Status.

1	and the second se	Payment Information			
Term	Aid Program	Institution	Enrollment	Status	Amount
Fall	STG	THE R P. LEWIS CO., LANSING MICH.	Full-time	Paid	7230.00
				Total 7230	.00

Program Totals

The 'Program Totals' displays the 'Total Cumulative Paid' which is the sum of all STG funds the student has been awarded across all academic years.



STG Reimbursement Request

To request reimbursement, click the 'Survivor Tuition Grant' menu item on the left navigation bar. Then click on 'Reimbursement Request.'

SSG
Exit MiSSG
MISSG
Michigan Competitive Scholarship
Michigan Tuition Grant
Tuition Incentive Program
Children of Veterans Tuition Grant
Survivor Tuition Grant
Award Rules
School Profile
Payment History
Reimbursement Request
Quick View

Select a term/semester to request reimbursement for and click the 'Reimbursement Roster' button.



Your roster will show all eligible STG students at your institution who are able to have a reimbursement request submitted for them for the term selected.

	20	17-2018 Fall Reimbursement Roster Survivor Tuition Grant Indones Available for Polybursement	
	Filter:	APFLY FILTER	REMOVE FILTER
	Student Select	Ion: Ω All Students Ω Students without a Fall rein	mbursement
		K to Page >>>>	
ti Anno	194	Date Of Birth	Reimharse
	201 B	(and a second	REQUEST REIMBURSEMENT
	100	and the second se	REQUEST REIMBURSEMENT
Poquacting roimbursoma	ot for a student cortifies that the a	mount charged has been unived in as	coordance with 0.4.105 of 1000 and that the tuition is a
covered or p	aid by any scholarship, trust fund,	statuatory benefit or any other source	e of tuition coverage available to the student.
		CANCEL	

If you want to refine the displayed list of students who are available for reimbursement, there are two methods:

- 1. You may omit those students who already had a request submitted for Fall by clicking the 'Student Selection' radio button labeled 'Students without a Fall Reimbursement.'
 - Click the 'All Students' radio button to include the omitted records.

	2017-2018 Fall Reimbursement R Survivor Tuition Grant	oster
	2 Students Available for Reimburse	ment
Filter:	APPLY FILTER	REMOVE FILTER
Student Se	lection: O All Students O Students without a l	Fall reimbursement
	Page >>>	

- 1. Entering a last name or Social Security number into the Filter field to omit students who do not match the criteria and clicking the 'Apply Filter' button.
 - Click the 'Remove Filter' button to include the omitted records.



Click the 'Request Reimbursement' button for the student you want to request reimbursement for.



To submit a reimbursement request on the 'STG Reimbursement Request' page:

1. Enter the number of credit hours you are requesting reimbursement for in the 'Credit Hours' field. This number may contain a decimal.

Note: The number of credits hours requested may not be less than six unless the 'Credits Remaining' field is also less than six.

- 2. Enter the total amount of tuition, in dollars and cents, that you are requesting reimbursement for in the 'Amount' field.
- 3. Click the 'Save' button.

STG Reimburse Academ 2017-201	ment Request ic Year 8 - Fall
TOTALS REMAINING: Credits Remaining: Semesters Remaining:	81.00
Credit Hours Amount 3 SAVE	CANCEL

Once a reimbursement has been requested, an active reimbursement request displays in the 'Reimbursement Information' section of the student record:

Reimbursement Information		
Credits Remaining	81.00	
Semester Remaining	6.00	
Fall Reimbursement Data: Credit Hours Amount	REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST 15.00 \$7,230.00	

Requesting Additional Funds

An additional reimbursement request can be made from the 'Reimbursement Request' screen as normal or directly from the student's current-year STG record.

- 1. Navigate to the student's 'Quick View' record.
- 2. Click the current-year STG record.

Quick View	
SSN Quick View:	
G0 1	
Existing MCS/MTG	
MCS/MTG 2017 - 2018	
MCS/MTG 2016 - 2017	
TIP 2017 - 2018	
TIP 2016 - 2017	
Existing Grants/Scholarships	
STG 2017 - 2018 2	
STG 2016 - 2017	
Transaction History	
Payment History	
FAFSA Data	

- 3. Scroll down the student's record until you see 'Reimbursement Information.'
- 4. Click on the 'Reimbursement Request' button.

	Reimbursement Information 🧹	3
Credits Remaining	81.00	0
Semester Remaining	6.00	
Fall Reimbursement Data:		
Credit Hours	15.00	
Amount	\$7,230.00	

- 5. Enter additional credits not included in the existing STG reimbursement request for that semester term in the 'Credit Hours' field.
- 6. Enter total additional award amount that exceeds the existing STG reimbursement request for that semester/term in the 'Amount' field.
- 7. Click the 'Save' button.

STG Reimburse Academ 2017-201	ment-Request ic Year 8 - Fall
TOTALS REMAINING: Credits Remaining: Semesters Remaining:	81.00 6
5 Credit Hours B Amount 7 SAVE	CANCEL

Multiple Reimbursement Requests

Reimbursement Information Screen

When multiple requests for reimbursements exist for the same semester/term on a student's record, you will see all entries in the student's record under 'Reimbursement Information.'

	Reimbursement Informatio
Credits Remaining	30.00
Semester Remaining	2.00
Fall Reimbursement Data:	DELETE REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST
Credit Hours	12.00
Amount	\$5,004.00

Remove a Non-Paid STG Reimbursement Request

To remove a student's STG reimbursement request:

- 1. Navigate to the student's 'Quick View' record.
- 2. Click on the current-year STG record.

Quick View
SSN Quick View:
60 1
Existing MCS/MTG
MCS/MTG 2017 - 2018
MCS/MTG 2016 - 2017
Existing TIP
TIP 2017 - 2018
TIP 2016 - 2017
Existing Grants/Scholarships
STG 2017 - 2018 🧲 2
STG 2016 - 2017
Transaction History
Payment History
FAFSA Data

- 3. Scroll down the student's record until you see 'Reimbursement Information.'
- 4. Click on the 'Delete' button to remove the request. The corresponding award must still be in the 'Ready To Pay' Status; otherwise, the 'Delete' button will be unavailable.
 - a. After the previous request has been removed, a new reimbursement request can be made.

	Reimbursement Information
Credits Remaining	30.00
Semester Remaining	2.00
Fall Reimbursement Data:	
Credit Hours	12.00
Amount	\$5,004.00

Refunding Paid STG Reimbursements

Institutions should never send refunds or other return funds to SSG without first having specifically received a billing notice. Any differences in aggregate amounts awarded and paid are designed to net out naturally over the course of the four quarterly payments.

To reduce an existing award, a Refund Adjustment must be applied to the award. Navigate to the student's record:

1. Click on 'Payment History' in the 'Quick View.'

Quick View	
SSN Quick View:	
GO	
Existing MCS/MTG	
MCS/MTG 2017 - 2018	
MCS/MTG 2016 - 2017	
Existing TIP	
TIP 2017 - 2018	
TIP 2016 - 2017	
Existing Grants/Scholarships	
STG 2017 - 2018	
STG 2016 - 2017	
Transaction History	
Payment History	
FAFSA Data	

2. Locate the academic year and corresponding payment that needs to be refunded on the list of existing payments.

Note: Adjustments may only be made for current-year awards. If a prior-year needs to be adjusted, please email <u>mistudentaid@michigan.gov.</u>

Û.	Stur	dent Payment History			
	s	tudent Information			
	Name Address Clty.State.Zip Home Phone Number Date of Birth Email Address Gender MISSG ID CEPI ID Converted Check Count				
	Acade	emic Year 2017 - 2018 🧾			
Date	Program	Institution	Term	Турс	Amount
2018/01/23	Survivor Tuition Grant		Fall	Payment	\$7230.00

3. Click the underlined amount for the award to navigate to the 'Enter Adjustment' screen where the refund adjustment can be performed.

Note: Only School Users with STG Administrator 1 security rights can use the 'Enter Adjustment' screen.

From the 'Enter Adjustment' screen:

- Enter the number of credits in the 'Credit Adjustment' field that you are reducing by.
 Enter the total amount of tuition, in dollars and cents, in the 'Payment Adjustment Amount' field that you are reducing the award by. 3. Click the 'Save' button.

Enter Ad	justment
Fall 201	7 - 2018
School: Program: Semester Credits Taken (including any prior paid adjustments and ready to pay payments): Amount Paid (including any prior paid adjustments and ready to pay payments): Credit Adjustment: Payment Adjustment Amount 3 SAVE	STG 15.00 7230.00 1 2 CANCEL

Tuition Incentive Program (TIP) Features

School Profile

Contact information for your institution is stored in your school profile. It is important to keep this record up to date.

Contact information is program specific. If you have different staff working on different State of Michigan programs, you will need to provide separate contact information for each program under the School Profile tab.

To view/update your profile information for TIP, click the 'Tuition Incentive Program' menu item on the left navigation bar. Then click on 'School Profile.'



TIP Payment History

The Payment History section displays information about TIP payments made to your institution during the selected academic year. The date of the payment, the quarter the payment was made, and the amount of the payment is provided.

To view Payment History, click the 'Tuition Incentive Program' menu item on the left navigation bar. Then click on 'Payment History.'



		- Pay	ment History				
Current Balance: 50.	00					Change Academic Year	2016-2017
-		Academ	ic Year 2016-2017				
Date	Batch Number	Warrant/EFT Number	Program	Quarter	Туре	Payment	Amount
2/17/2017	Q25200104817	254164679	TIP	2	Q2 Payment	\$22,00	00.00
12/7/2016	Q15200134216	253858958	TIP	1	Q1 Payment	\$228,5	32.00
					Total:	\$250,5	52.00
			CANCEL				

TIP Reimbursement Request Download File

To download a list of your eligible TIP students, click the 'Tuition Incentive Program' menu item on the left navigation bar. Click on 'TIP Reimbursement Request.'



Select the semester/term you want to download a roster for. Then click the 'Download Roster' button. (We suggest using this file as a starting point to create your Upload Reimbursement file.) The File Requests screen appears.

Home TIP Reimbursement Requ	est(TIP) X					
		File Requ	ests			
File Type	Request Date	Status	User Name	Ald Program	Term	Download
Download Reimbursement Roster 2016-2017	12-21-2016	File request has been received and is awaiting processing.	and the second s	Tuition Incentive Program	Fall	

Observe the status column of the File Requests screen. After a minute or two, if you do not see "The File has completed successfully" message, click the 'Refresh' button at the bottom of the screen.

When the file has completed (step 1), you can download the file by clicking on the download arrow icon on the right side of the file request's line (step 2).

Home	TIP Reimbursen	ent Request(TIP)	×				
				Select Ac	ademic Term		
				Fall			
			UPLOAD ROST	er Reimburg	EMENT ROSTER	DOWNLOAD F	OSTER
Home	TIP Reimbursement Requi	est(TIP) X					
			F	ile Requests			
	File Type	Request Date	Status	User Name	Ald Program	n Term	Download
Downloa 2016-20	d Reimbursement Roster 17	12-21-2016	The File has completed successfully.	210	Tuition Incent Program	ive Fall	

After clicking on the download icon, you will be given the option to OPEN or SAVE the file. Page | 63 To OPEN the file, click on 'OPEN.' The text file will be structured as a Comma Separated Values (CSV).

ReimburseDownload_201705031	3592473 - Notepad
File Edit Format View Help	
2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring,	4.000,80.000,2000.00 4.000,80.000,2000.00 ,80.000,2000.00 ,80.000,2000.00 ,0,80.000,2000.00 ,0,30.000,200.00
2017, spring,, 2017, spring,, 2017, spring,, 2017, spring,, 2017, spring,,	00,80.000,2000.00 24.000,80.000,2000.00 ,24.000,80.000,2000.00 ,24.000,80.000,2000.00 ,24.000,80.000,2000.00
2017, spring,	000,80.000,2000.00 .000,80.000,2000.00 .01/05/2015,24.000,80.000,0.00 .24.000,80.000,2000.00
2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring,	000,80.000,2000.00 00,80.000,2000.00 4.000,80.000,2000.00 .000,80.000,2000.00
2017, Spring, 2017, Spring, 2017, Spring, 2017, Spring, 2017, Spring,	, 1
2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring,	0,80,000,2000,00 00,80,000,2000,00 ,000,80,000,2000,00 ,000,80,000,2000,00 ,000,80,000,2000,00 ,00,80,000,2000,00
2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring,	24.000,80.000,2000.00 24.000,80.000,2000.00 7 4.000,80.000,2000.00 7 5A,,24.000,80.000,2000.00 5A,,24.000,80.000,2000.00
2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring,	R, 24,000,80,000,2000.00 04/2015,14.000,14.000,500.00 00,8.000,2000.00 00,8.000,2000.00
2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring, 2017, spring,	24,000,80,000,2000,00 000,72,000,2000,00 4,000,65,000,2000,00 000,13,000,2000,00 24,000,52,000,2000,00

To SAVE the file in a different location, click the arrow next to save and select Save As instead. It is recommended (not required) that you rename the file as you save it.

View Downloads - Internet Explorer				_ O _ X
View and track your downloads		Search downlo	ads	P
Name ReimburseDowtxt 42.8 KB missg-beta.guarantorsolutions.com	Location Do you want to oper save this file?	Ac	Open	Save 🔻
SmartScreen Filter is turned off.			Turn on	

Page | 64

After downloading, open your text file by using Excel.

Open					8
OO 🖡 * Loca	al Disk	(C:) + Users +	Desktop	+ ++ Search	Desktop
Organize • New	folde	t			8 · 🗆 0
Favorites		Name		Date modified	Туре
 Desktop OneDrive Recent Places 		Reimburse	Download_201612211412	23434 12/21/2016 3:45 PM	A Text Document
Libraries Documents Music Pictures Videos					
	*	* [)III		+
Fil	le nam	e: ReimburseDo	wnload_20161221141234	34.bxt - All Files (*.*) Tools - Open	Cancel

Change the "file type" to All Files (*.*) to allow Excel to locate your .txt file.

The Text Import Wizard will appear after you select your text file and click open.

Step 1 – Select 'Delimited' as the type of file. Then click the Next button.

	p10/3	8 60
The Text Wizard has dete	ermined that your data is D	elimited.
If this is correct, choose	Next, or choose the data ty	ype that best describes your data.
Original data type		
Choose the file type th	at hest describes your dat	a.
Delimited	Characters such as comma	s or tabs senarate each field
Deminiced	Cinductors such as commu.	and with senses between each field
O Fixed width - 1	rielus are aligned in colun	ins with spaces between each neid.
a second s		
Start import at row: 1	File origin:	437 : OEM United States
My data has headers.		
My data has headers.		
My data has headers.		
My data has headers. Preview of file C:\Users	\maurerj3\Desktop\Reimb	urseDownload_2017050313592473.txt.
My data has headers. Preview of file C:\Users 1 2017, Spring,	\maurerj3\Desktop\Reimb	urseDownload_2017050313592473.txt.
My data has headers. Preview of file C:\Users 12017, Spring, 2017, Spring,	\maurerj3\Desktop\Reimb	urseDownload_2017050313592473.txt.
My data has headers. Preview of file C:\Users 12017, Spring, 22017, Spring, 32017, Spring,	\maurerj3\Desktop\Reimb	urseDownload_2017050313592473.txt.
My data has headers. Preview of file C:\Users 12017, Spring, 22017, Spring, 32017, Spring, 42017, Spring, 5002, Spring,	\maurerj3\Desktop\Reimb	urseDownload_2017050313592473.txt.
My data has headers. Preview of file C:\Users 1 2017, Spring, 2 2017, Spring, 3 2017, Spring, 4 2017, Spring, 5 2017, Spring,	\maurerj3\Desktop\Reimb	urseDownload_2017050313592473.txt.
My data has headers. Preview of file C:\Users 1 2017, Spring, 2 2017, Spring, 3 2017, Spring, 4 2017, Spring, 5 2017, Spring, 4	\maurerj3\Desktop\Reimb	urseDownload_2017050313592473.txt.
My data has headers. Preview of file C:\Users 1 2017, Spring, 2 2017, Spring, 3 2017, Spring, 4 2017, Spring, 5 2017, Spring, 4	\maurerj3\Desktop\Reimb	urseDownload_2017050313592473.txt.
My data has headers. Preview of file C:\Users 1 2017, Spring, 2 2017, Spring, 3 2017, Spring, 4 2017, Spring, 5 2017, Spring, 4	\maurerj3\Desktop\Reimb	urseDownload_2017050313592473.txt.

Step 2 – Select 'Comma' as the type of delimiter in your file. Then click the 'Next' button.

	- Step 2 of 3				8 ×
preview below.	set the delimiters	your data contai	ns. You can se	e now your text	is affected in the
I ab					
Semicolon	Treat conse	ecutive delimiters	as one		
Space	Text <u>q</u> ualifier:	-	•		
Other:					
Data preview					
2017 Spring 2017 Spring 2017 Spring 2017 Spring 2017 Spring				09/03/2014	24.000 80.000 24.000 80.000 24.000 80.000 24.000 80.000 24.000 80.000
2017 Spring 2017 Spring 2017 Spring 2017 Spring 2017 Spring 4				09/03/2014	24.000 80.000 24.000 80.000 24.000 80.000 24.000 80.000 24.000 80.000 +

Step 3 – Highlight the columns in the Data Preview pane and choose 'Text' as the column data format. Then click the 'Finish' button.

Columi	n data for neral	mat		'Gener	al' converts	iumeric valu	es to number:	, date values	to dates, a
© <u>D</u> af	te: MD) not <u>i</u> mpo	(ort column	▼ (skip)				dvanced		
Data <u>p</u> i Text 2017	review Text Spring	Text	Tex	rt .	Text	Text	Text	Text 24.000	Text 80.000

Your file of eligible students will be displayed as a spreadsheet.

FILE	HOME INS	ERT P	AGE LAYOUT	FORMU	LAS	DATA F	REVIEW	VIEW A	CROBAT
Paste Fo	ut opy 🔹 ormat Painter	Calibri B I L	- 11 1 - = -	- A* A	II II		· Pv	Vrap Text Nerge & Cente	Gener er + \$ +
Clipbo	ard 🕠		Font	r	ŝ	A	lignment		Es .
Q19	+ 1 >	$\langle \checkmark$	fx						
A	В	с	D	E	F	G	н	I	J
1 2017	Spring						24.000	80.000	2000
2 2017	Spring						24.000	80.000	2000
3 2017	Spring						24.000	80.000	2000
4 2017	Spring	-					24.000	80.000	2000
5 2017	Spring	-				09/03/20	1 24.000	80.000	1500
6 2017	Spring						24.000	80.000	2000
7 2017	Spring						24.000	80.000	2000
8 2017	Spring					1	24.000	80.000	2000
9 2017	Spring	1					24.000	80.000	2000
10 2017	Spring						24.000	80.000	2000
11 2017	Spring						24.000	80.000	2000
4 +	Reimbu	IrseDownl	oad_2017050	313592	Ð	h		1	1

Your download file is a Comma Separated Values (CSV) format. All fields are delimited by a comma and there is a Carriage Return Line Feed (CRLF) at the end of each row. Your download file contains the following fields:

Column	Dowr The format of the All fields are delim Carriage Return L	file is "Comma s ited by a comm ine Feed (CRLF	Separated Values" (CSV) a (.)) at the end of each row
	Field Name	Туре	Field Description
А	Academic Year	Numeric	Award Year (all records in the file will contain the same value) Use ending year - if the acyear is 2015-2016 this field must contain 2016)
В	Tem	Alphanumeric	Term being requested for reimbursement (all records in file must contain the same value) Valid values include: "Fall" "Winter" "Spring"
С	SSN	Numeric	Student's Social Security Number
D	Date of Birth	Date (mm/dd/ccyy)	Student's Date of Birth - will include slashes
F	Last Name	Alphanumeric	Student's Last Name
E	First Name	Alphanumeric	Student's First Name
G	Date Eligible for Phase II	Date (mm/dd/ccyy)	Only populated if already on file from a prior Phase II reimbursement – will include slashes
Н	Phase I Annual Credits Remaining	Numeric	Remaining annual Phase I credits – will contain decimal
I	Phase I Total Credits Remaining	Numeric	Remaining total Phase I credits – will contain decimal
J	Phase II Total Amount Remaining	Numeric	Remaining total Phase II dollars – will contain decimal

Columns needed (from this file) for your Upload reimbursement file are:

- Column A Academic Year
- Column B Term
- Column C SSN
- Column D Date of Birth
- Column E Last Name
- Column F First Name
- Column G Date Eligible for Phase II
- Columns H, I, and J provide remaining credits in Phase I and available dollars in Phase II. You will delete columns H, I, and J before adding the data needed for your upload file.

TIP Reimbursement Request

To request reimbursement, click the 'Tuition Incentive Program' menu item on the left navigation bar. Then click on 'TIP Reimbursement Request.'

S	iG.
Exit MiSSG	
Missg	
Michigan Com	petitive Scholarship
Michigan Tuiti	ion Grant
Tuition Incent	ive Program
Award Rules	
School Profile	
Payment Histo	ory
Clear Ineligibl	e Reasons
TIP Reimburse	ement Request
Lookup TIP Re	emaining Credits/Amounts
Quick View	

You will be given two reimbursement choices:

- Upload Roster (Batch Reimbursement Requests)
- Reimbursement Roster (Individual Student Requests)

Home	TIP Reimbursement Request(TIP) × Select Academic Term
	Fall V UPLOAD ROSTER REIMBURSEMENT ROSTER DOWNLOAD ROSTER

It is always recommended to use the most recent download file possible when creating an upload file.

Request Reimbursement Using Upload Roster

You can use your download roster as a starting point or you can create a new file to upload to MiSSG. Your upload file must be in a CSV format. All fields must be delimited by a comma, including non-required or empty fields. Every row must contain 13 fields. Your file must follow the file format below.

Column	• Th • All co • Ca	Upload e format for the file i fields are delimited mmas. arriage Return Line F	TIP Reimburs is "Comma Separa by a comma (,) ev Feed (CRLF) at th	sement Request ated Values" (CSV) ven non-required field e end of each row	File Layout s. Every row must contain 12
	MAX	Field Name	Туре	Req	Field Description
А	4	Academic Year	Numeric	Y	Award Year (all records in the file must contain the same value) Use ending year - if the acyear is 2015- 2016 this field must contain 2016)
В	6	Term	Alphanumeric	Y	Term being requested for reimbursement (all records in file must contain the same value) Valid values include: "Fall" "Winter" "Spring" "Summer"
С	9	SSN	Numeric	Y	Student's Social Security Number
D	10	Date of Birth	Date (mm/dd/ccyy)	Y	Student's Date of Birth – must include slashes
E	16	Last Name	Alphanumeric		Student's Last Name
F	20	First Name	Alphanumeric		Student's First Name
G	10	Date Eligible for Phase II	Date (mm/dd/ccyy)	Req if Phase = '2'	Date student eligible for Phase II – must include the slashes
н	1	Phase	Alphanumeric	Y	Phase Valid values include: "1" – Phase I "2" – Phase II
I	5	Credits	Numeric	Req if Phase = '1'	Credit hours - may contain a decimal
J	8	Tuition	Numeric	Req if Phase = '1'	Tuition charged to TIP - may contain a decimal
К	6	Mandatory Fees	Numeric	Req if Phase = '1'	Total Mandatory Fees - may contain a decimal
L	1	District Status	Alphanumeric	Req if Phase = '1' and school is a Community College	District status Valid Values include: "1" – In-District "2" – Out-of-District
М	5	Award Amount	Numeric	Req if Phase = '2'	School's Award Amount - may contain a decimal

If not using the downloaded roster, prior to uploading your file, you should compare the students in your upload file to the list of eligible students in MiSSG. If students do not appear on the list from MiSSG, you must contact SSG and request those students to be transferred to your institution PRIOR to uploading your file for reimbursement. You can also request that students go to the MiSSG Student Portal and select your institution as their school of choice.

- Column G: Date Eligible for Phase II
 - Establishing the date that the student became eligible for Phase II.
 - o This includes:
 - Obtained 56 transferable semester (or 84 transferable term) credits.
 - Obtained a certificate (minimum of one year) or associate degree.
- Column H: Phase
 - o Determines the type of TIP reimbursement being requested for the student.
 - If a student is utilizing Phase I, use the value "1."
 - Selecting Phase I requires Columns I, J, and K to be completed.
 - Column L is also required if your institution is a Community College.
 - Column M must be present, but remain empty.
 - If a student is utilizing Phase II, use the value "2."
 - Selecting Phase II requires that Columns G and M be completed.
 - Columns I, J, K, and L must be present, but remain empty.
 - Column I: Credits
 - o Only list the credit hours that are TIP eligible.
 - Courses must be within the degree (certificate/associate) program.
- Column J: Tuition
 - Enter the total value of the tuition which will be reimbursed.
 - o This does not include mandatory fees.
- Column K: Mandatory Fees
 - Mandatory fees are fees charged to all students at all campuses as a condition of enrolment and must be identified in the institution course catalog. Mandatory fees cannot exceed \$250 at all campus locations persemester/term.
 - o This does not include tuition.
- Column L: District Status (Community Colleges only)
 - o Determines the tuition rate of TIP reimbursement being requested for the student.
 - If a student is In-District, use the value "1."
 - The tuition rate will be the In-District Tuition Rate per Credit within the School Profile.
 - If a student is Out-of-District, use the value "2."
 - The tuition rate will be the Out-of-District Tuition Rate per Credit within the School Profile.
 - o Definitions of district status can be found within the <u>State Programs Procedures Manual</u>.
- Column M: Award Amount
 - o This is the value of the Phase II reimbursement.

After verifying every student you wish to include in your reimbursement request is listed in your upload file, you must make sure your file is in a CSV format before uploading to MiSSG.
When viewed as text, your file should look like the example below. The example shows both Phase I and Phase II students.

tipuploadfile_2017022108093073 - Notepad	
File Edit Format View Help	
2017, Spring, , , ,)/07/2016,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,)9/08/2015,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring, , , , , , , ,)1/06/2016,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	,01/06/2016,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring, , , ,	18/2015,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring,	19/07/2010,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring,	00/07/2016 2 500
2017, Spring,	VA 00/08/2015 2 500
2017 Spring.	06/2016 2 500
2017 Spring)9/07/2016 2 500
2017 Spring	01/04/2017 2 500
2017, Spring.)9/07/2016.2
2017. Spring.)9/08/2015.2500
2017.Spring.	01/06/2016.2500
2017.Spring.	01/04/2017.2500
2017.Spring.	04/2016.2500
2017, Spring,	.01/05/2015,2,,500
2017, Spring, , ,	LYN,09/08/2015,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	09/08/2015,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring,, ,, ,)/08/2015,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring,,,)1/06/2016,2,,,,,500
2017,Spring, , ,	09/08/2015,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring, , , ,),09/08/2015,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring, , , , , , , , ,	1,01/06/2016,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring,,)6/2016,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring, , ,	VON,01/06/2016,2,,,,,500
2017, spring,	,01/06/2016,2,,,,500
2017, Spring,	IAH, 09/08/2015,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring,,	1/05/2015,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring, , , ,	TARA 01/04/2017 2 500
2017 Spring, , ,	19/07/2016 2 500
2017 Spring	11/04/2017 2 500
2017, Spring,	/04/2017.2
2017. Spring.	04/2017.2500
2017. Spring.)/07/2016.2500
2017.Spring.)1/04/2017.2500
2017, Spring,)1/04/2017.2500
2017, Spring,	06/2016,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring,,,,	HA,01/04/2017,2,,,,,500
2017, spring, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	01/06/2016,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring, , , , , ,)9/08/2015,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring,, /, /)1/06/2016,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring,,,,)9/08/2015,2,,,,,500
2017,Spring, , , ,	01/06/2016,2,,,,,500
2017, spring, , ,	JALIA,09/08/2015,2,,,,,500
2017, spring, , , ,	1/0//2016,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring,	R,09/08/2015,2,,,,,500
2017, Spring, ,	BKENNA, 01/00/2010, 2, , , , 500
2017, Spring, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	01/04/2017,2,,,,,500

When your file is complete and in the proper format, you can upload the file to MiSSG. To upload your file:

1. Click on the 'Tuition Incentive Program' menu item on the left navigation bar.



2. Click on 'TIP Reimbursement Request.'

SSC.
Exit MISSG
MISSG
Michigan Competitive Scholarship
Michigan Tuition Grant
Tuition Incentive Program
Award Rules
School Profile
Payment History
Clear Ineligible Reasons
TIP Reimbursement Request
Lookup TIP Remaining Credits/Amounts
Quick View

- 3. Select the 'Academic Term' you are requesting reimbursement for.
- 4. Click the' Upload Roster' button.

Next you will see the status of your uploaded file. The message "File request has been received and is awaiting processing" means MiSSG is waiting to process the file. Eventually, the message will change to "The file is being executed."

Check the status in a few minutes. If your file processed successfully, you will see the message "The

File has completed successfully."

TIP Reimbursement Request(TIP) ×	
Select Academic Term	
Fall V 3	
4 UPLOAD ROSTER REIMBURSEMENT ROSTER	DOWNLOAD ROSTER
TIP Reimbursement Request(TIP) X	

Upload TIP Reimbursement Request 2016- 2017	12-21-2016	File request has been received and is awaiting processing.	Turbon Incentive Fall Program Fall
Home TIP Reimbursement Request(TIP)) ×]		
		File Requests	

File Requests					
Request Date	Status	User Name	Ald Program	Term	Download
12-21-2016	The File has completed successfully.		Tuition Incentive Program	Fall	
	Request Date	File Reg Request Date Status 12-21-2016 The File has completed successfully.	File:Requests Request Date Status User Name 12-21-2016 The File has completed Successfully.	File Requests Request Date Status User Name Ald Program 12-21-2016 The File has completed successfully. Tuition Incentive Program	File Requests Request Date Status User Name Ald Program Term 12-21-2016 The File has completed successfully. Tuition Incentive Program Fall

It is important that the aid administrator checks the file request to verify if the file was successful or not. The status "The file has completed successfully" will display if there were no rejected records. Non-rejected records will have processed though. "The file has been processed, but errors were found" status will display if there were rejected records.

File Туре	Request Date	Status	User Name	Aid Program	Term	Download
Upload TIP Reimbursement Request 2016- 2017	11-30-2016	System errors were found.		Tuition Incentive Program	Fall	
Upload TIP Reimbursement Request 2016- 2017	11-30-2016	The File has been processed but <		Tuition Incentive Program	Fall	

To find out what errors are within a file, click on the status message. The status will indicate the line the error was found on and the cause of the error. The "System errors were found" status message will display if there was a problem with the file's layout. No records or awards were processed if this displays. Refer to the <u>Upload File</u> format for file specifications.



It is important to check to see all records were processed correctly. If records did not process, then the reimbursement request was not received by MiSSG. When quarterly payment files are created, only received reimbursement requests are included for payment.

Click the status message to view a description of the errors.

	Fil	e Processing Information
	File Name: ti	File Date: 11/30/2016 puploadfile_2016113015460167.txt
		Processing Messages
	Num	ber of Records Read from File = 520
Line:26 Error.	- The Date of	f Birth entered does not match the Date of Birth for the associated SSN.
Line:42 Error	- Student ha	as been certified as NotEnrolled for another aid program for this term.
Line:290 Error.	- The Date o	f Birth entered does not match the Date of Birth for the associated SSN.
Lir	e:466 Error	- The SSN entered does not match any TIP students.
	Line:493 Error:	- Credit hours have exceeded the maximum.
	L	Ipload Students contained errors.
		FILE REQUESTS

In the example above, 520 records were read, 515 records had Reimbursement Requests created, and the five with errors were not processed. The five records that failed to process will have the error reason listed:

- Line 26 The student's Date of Birth (DOB) in the file was different from the DOB in MiSSG's records.
- Line 42 The student had been certified as "not enrolled" for either the Michigan Competitive Scholarship or the Michigan Tuition Grant at your school for the same term as this reimbursement request. You may need to contact SSG to resolve this error.
- Line 290 The student's DOB in your file was different from the DOB in our records. You will need to verify the correct DOB and resubmit the request for reimbursement.
- Line 466 SSN in your file does not match any TIP students. Verify you have the correct SSN. If the SSN is correct, contact SSG to verify the SSN on file in MiSSG and update if necessary.
- Line 493 Credit hours have exceeded the maximum. This error message appears when you are billing for more credit hours than the student has available. You should verify the amount of credits available by inspecting the student's record, your download file, or contacting SSG for verification.

In all cases, adjustments to the upload file must be made and the students with errors must be submitted again.

It is always recommended to use the most recent download file possible when creating an upload file.

There are three ways to resubmit your request.

- 1. You can correct your original file and upload it again.
 - a. If you resubmit your original file with required corrections, you will see the following error messages for the student records that processed successfully the first time. There is no action required for these records. The system is simply indicating a request for reimbursement has already been received from your previous upload attempt.

	File Processing Information
	File Date: 12/1/2016 File Name: tipuploadfile_2016120114164343.txt
	Processing Messages
	Number of Records Read from File = 684
Line:1 Error:	A reimbursement request already exists for this term; additional requests must be submitted online.
Line:3 Error:	A reimbursement request already exists for this term, additional requests must be submitted online.
Line:5 Error:	A reimbursement request already exists for this term; additional requests must be submitted online.
Line:7 Error:	A reimbursement request already exists for this term; additional requests must be submitted online.
Line:9 Error:	A reimbursement request already exists for this term; additional requests must be submitted online.
Line:10 Error	A reimbursement request already exists for this term; additional requests must be submitted online.
Line:12 Error	A reimbursement request already exists for this term; additional requests must be submitted online.
Line:13 Error	· A reimbursement request already exists for this term; additional requests must be submitted online.
Line:16 Error	A reimbursement request already exists for this term; additional requests must be submitted online.
Line:17 Error	- A reimbursement request already exists for this term; additional requests must be submitted online.
Line:18 Error	A reimbursement request already exists for this term; additional requests must be submitted online.
Line:19 Error	- A reimbursement request already exists for this term; additional requests must be submitted online.
Line:20 Error	A reimbursement request already exists for this term; additional requests must be submitted online.

- 2. You can create and upload a new file with only the students who need to be resubmitted.
- 3. You can use the online Request Reimbursement feature for those students who need to be resubmitted.

Online Reimbursement Request

To begin online reimbursement, you will need to load your Reimbursement Roster. Select 'TIP' menu item 'TIP Reimbursement Request' from the drop down box the semester/term for which you are requesting reimbursement. Then click the 'Reimbursement Roster' button.



Your roster will show all eligible TIP students who have indicated your institution as their college of choice for the term selected on their FAFSA or via the MiSSG Student Portal.

some 1	2016	2017 Fall Reindursement Rokler.	
	2172 St	Tuition Incentive Program udents Available for Reimbursement	
	Filter:	APPLY FILTER REN	NOVE FILTER
	Student Selection:	OAll Students OStudents without a Fall reimburse	ment
		M 44 Page PP P	
	- 10	Daty. Of thir th	Reimburse
			REQUEST REIMBURSEMENT
	1000		REQUEST REIMBURSEMENT
	1 particular		REQUEST REIMBURSEMENT
and the second			REQUEST REIMBURSEMENT
-	101.0	1.000	REQUEST REIMBURSEMENT
100	100		REQUEST REIMBURSEMENT
	- 101		REQUEST REIMBURSEMENT
1.00			REQUEST REIMBURSEMENT
-	00.00	1001	REQUEST REIMBURSEMENT
-	1.00.000		

Click the 'Request Reimbursement' button for the student you want to request reimbursement for.



Academic Year 2016 2017 Fall	
PHASE II TOTALS: 00 Total Amount Remaining 00 00	1500.00
	2016 2017 Fall PHASE II TOTALS: Total Amount Remaining 0 0 00

Select Phase I or Phase II from the drop down box.

For Phase I

- 1. Community Colleges Only: Click In-District or Out-of-District to indicate which rate you will be using.
- 2. Enter number of credits billed to TIP.
 - a. REMEMBER: A reimbursement cannot be for less than six credits unless the student has less than six credits remaining for the academic year or for Phase I overall.
- 3. Enter the tuition amount charged to TIP.
- 4. Enter the mandatory fee amount charged to TIP. If no fees are charged, you must enter a zero in the mandatory fee field.
- 5. The total amount charged (tuition plus mandatory fees) will calculate and appear next to Total Amount.
- 6. Click 'OK' to complete the student's Phase I reimbursement.



For Phase II

- 1. It is necessary to provide the date a student became eligible for Phase II. This is the date of the student's associate degree or the date that the student had a minimum of 56 transferable credits. The date will be entered only once.
- 2. Enter the tuition amount billed for Phase II. The maximum amount would be \$500 for a semester institution or \$400 for a term institution.
- 3. Click 'OK' to complete processing the student's Phase II reimbursement.
 - a. Note: The student's name will NOT disappear from your roster after you request reimbursement.



For each student who needs to have a reimbursement request created, click on their corresponding Request Reimbursement button and repeat steps 1 through 6 for Phase I or steps 1-3 for Phase II.

Lookup TIP Remaining Credits/Amounts

MiSSG provides authorized users the ability to verify how many Phase I credits or how much Phase II funding is available for eligible TIP students who have completed the TIP certification process.

You will need the student's:

- Complete SSN
- Date of Birth

Click 'OK' to see student's TIP record.



Home	Lookup TIP Remaining Credits/Amounts(TIP) X	ew TIP Remaining Credits/Amounts		
		Academic Year 2016-2017		
	PHASE I TOTALS: Total Annual Credits Remaining: Total Credits Remaining TERM Equivalent of Total Annual Credits Remaining TERM Equivalent of Total Credits Remaining	24.00 80.00 36.00 120.00	PHASE II TOTALS: Total Amount Remaining	2000.00
		BACK		

The example above shows:

- Student has 24 credits (or 36 term credits) available for the current academic year.
- Student has 80 credits (or 120 term credits) remaining in Phase I.
- Student has \$2,000 available in Phase II.

Clicking the 'BACK' button will return you to the blank look-up screen.

Home	Lookup TIP Remaining Credits/Amounts(TIP) X			
	Vie	ew TIP Remaining Credits/Amoun	ts	
		Academic Year 2016-2017		
	PHASE I TOTALS:		PHASE II TOTALS:	
	Total Annual Credits Remaining:	24.00	Total Amount Remaining	2000.00
	Total Credits Remaining	44.00		
	TERM Equivalent of Total Annual Credits Remaining	36.00		
	TERM Equivalent of Total Credits Remaining	66.00		
1				
		BACK		

The example above shows:

- The student has 24 semester credits (or 36 term credits) available in the current academic year.
- The student has 44 semester credits (or 66 term credits) remaining in Phase I.
- The student has \$2,000 available in Phase II.



The example above shows:

- The student has previously used Phase II funds and is no longer eligible for Phase I benefits.
- The student has \$500 remaining in Phase II. The student previously received \$1,500.

TIP Application Status: Eligible and Ineligible Messages

Check the eligibility status of a TIP student. If status is Eligible, the student may receive TIP benefits. If status is ineligible, one or more of the following reasons will be listed:

	Tuition Incentive Program Academic Year 2016 - 2017	
Status:	Ineligible	
Reason(s):	Years of Eligibility Expired from HS Graduation Years from HS Graduation Expired	

Citizenship Status

Student must be a U.S. citizen, permanent resident, or approved refugee.

Ineligible Institution

Student must be attending an eligible institution for TIP. Ineligible institution flag will appear if no institution is selected.

Default or Refund Owed on State Financial Aid

Student must not be in default on State aid. Default or refund owed on Federal financial aid, student must not be in default on Federal aid.

Student did not Self-certify

Student must self-certify prior to August 31st of the year of high school graduation and before age 20.

Years of Eligibility Expired from HS Graduation Student's eligibility will expire six years from the date of high school graduation.

Years from HS Graduation Expired

Student must initiate TIP within four years from date of high school graduation.

Medicaid Eligibility History Not Met

Student did not meet the 24 months of qualifying Medicaid within a 36 consecutive month period prior to high school graduation.

No Funds Remaining

Student has no remaining Phase II funds.

HS Graduation Date Not on File

Student must have graduation date on file.

Did Not Self-certify in Time

Window of opportunity to self-certify has closed.

Student Turned 20 Years Old Prior to HS Graduation

Student must graduate from high school or receive GED or certificate of completion prior to 20th birthday.

Adjustments for TIP Reimbursement

Refunds

You no longer have to send a check to the State of Michigan to return funds for the Tuition Incentive Program because MiSSG will net out payments across quarters. The ONLY time you will send a refund check is after 4th quarter payments have been made and you have received specific communications from SSG.

To process a refund through MiSSG:

- 1. Enter the student's SSN in the SSN Quick View box.
- 2. Click on 'Payment History.'
- 3. In the shaded purple area, look for the current academic year for which you need to return funds.
- 4. Click on the payment amount you need to adjust. The amount will be a link to the refund screen.





Note: You must have TIP Administrator 1 user rights to process TIP refunds.

Note: For each of the refund examples provided, follow steps 1 through 4 above, then select the example that best fits your refund situation.

Refund Example #1 – Refund due to other financial aid. A student had an outside scholarship in the amount of \$1,000.



- 1. Enter Credit Adjustment. (In this example, it is zero because you do not reduce credit hours when applying other aid.)
- 2. Enter Tuition Adjustment. (In this example, it is 1000 because that is the amount of the outside scholarship and the amount you want to reduce the reimbursement by.)
- 3. Enter Mandatory Fees Adjustment. (In this example, it is zero because you are not reducing mandatory fees.)
- 4. Verify sum of adjustment is correct.
- 5. Click the 'SAVE' button.

Refund Example #2 – Refund due to student dropped/withdrew from class(es).



A student dropped two credits at 100% refund. Amount to reduce reimbursement by is \$534.

- 1. Enter Credit Adjustment. (In this example, it is 2 because student dropped 2 credits.)
- 2. Enter Tuition Adjustment. (In this example, it is 534 because tuition reimbursement is reduced \$534.)
- 3. Enter Mandatory Fees Adjustment. (In this example, it is zero since the fees did not change.)
- 4. Verify sum of adjustment is correct.
- 5. Click the 'SAVE' button.

Refund Example #3 – Refund dropped/withdrew from classes to less than half-time enrollment status.

Enter Ad Fall 201	justment 6 - 2017
Lat 201	0 2011
1953	
School:	100000
Program	TIP
Semester Credits Taken (including any prior paid adjustments and ready to pay payments):	8.00
Equivalent Term Credits Taken	12.00
Total Tuition Charged (including any prior paid adjustments and ready to pay payments)	3136.00
Mandatory Fees (including any prior paid adjustments and ready to pay payments).	0.00
Amount Paid (including any prior paid adjustments and ready to pay payments):	3136.00
Credit Adjustment:	8
Tuition Adjustment:	3136
Mandatory Fees Adjustment	0 🌖
Total Adjusted Payment Amount (Sum of Mandatory Fees and Tuition Adjustment)	3136.00
SAVE	CANCEL

A student enrolled in eight credits drops four of them. The remaining four credits is considered less than halftime enrollment which is insufficient enrollment to receive reimbursement. The amount to be refunded is the full \$3,136 since all funds must be refunded as student must be enrolled at least half- time to use TIP.

- 1. Enter Credit Adjustment. (In this example, it is 8 because all credits must be reduced since none can be reimbursed at less than half-time enrollment.)
- 2. Enter Tuition Adjustment. (In this example, it is 3136 because that is the full value and of all credits being refunded.)
- 3. Enter Mandatory Fees Adjustment. (In this example, it is zero because fees are not being reduced because no fees were originally included in the reimbursement.)
- 4. Verify sum of adjustment is correct.
- 5. Click the 'SAVE' button.

Requesting Additional Credits

To process an adjustment through MiSSG (bill for additional credits). Example: Student added three credit class. Now it is necessary to bill TIP for three additional credit hours.

MISSO	Application Information			
High School	Current Institution			
Michigan Competitive Scholarship	Fail Institution	and the second second second	Spring Institution	COLUMN STATES
Michigan Tultion Grant	Winter Institution	and the second second	Summer Institution	A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR OFTA CONTRACTOR O
Tuition Incentive Program				- Company
System Administration	Phase I Annual Credits Remaining	10.00	High School	Contraction (B) ?
Galeti, Verei	Phase I Total Credits Remaining	66.00		
SSN Quick View:	Phase I TERM Equivalent Annual Credits Remaining	15.00	HS Graduation Year	
-	Phase I TERM Equivalent Total Credits Remaining	99.00	Date Degree/Certificate Earned	
00	Citizenship Override		Phase II Total Amount Remaining	\$2,000.00
and the second se	NSLDS Override		TIP Eligibility Override	
MCS/MTG 2017 - 2018 MCS/MTG 2016 - 2017 MCS/MTG 2015 - 2016 Existing TIP		UPDATE APPLICATION INFORMATI	ION TRANSFER STUDENT	
TIP 2016 - 2017	Reimbursement Information			
Transaction History Payment History FAFA Data	Fall Reimbursement Data: Phase	BEIMESSIK SELMENT HEQUEST		
The Data	Credit Hours	14.00	Total Tuition	\$1,554,00
-	TERM Equivalent Credit Hours	21.00	Total Mandatory Fees	\$224.00
	Out of District	monstrict	Total Amount	31.778.00
	1	Payment In	formation	

- 1. Enter the student's SSN in the SSN Quick Viewbox.
- 2. Click on the current TIP year (example: TIP 2016-2017).
- 3. Scroll down the student's record until you see Reimbursement Request.
- 4. Click on the 'Reimbursement Request' button.

Home TIP Reimbursement Request X		
	TIP Reimbursement Request	
	Academic Year 2016-2017 - Fall	
PHASE I TOTALS: Total Annual Credits Remaining Total Credits Remaining TERM Equivalent of Total Annual Credits Remaining TERM Equivalent of Total Credits Remaining	15.00 71.00 22.50 106.50	PHASE II TOTALS: Total Amount Remaining 2000.00
Total To T	Phase Phase I 1 Status In-District Out-of-Dr Credit Hours 3 uition Charged to Tip 297.00 Total Mandatory Fees 33 Total Amount 330.00 OK CANCEL	strict 2

- 1. Select Phase I or Phase II (as applicable).
- 2. Select In-District or Out-of-District (as applicable). Only community colleges see this.
- 3. Enter credit hours to be added.
- 4. Enter Total Tuition Charged to TIP.
- 5. Enter Total Mandatory Fees. (Fees from additional reimbursements are still restricted to term maximums.)
- 6. Verify Total Amount.
- 7. Click 'OK.'

Reducing the Number of Credits - Before Payment

To process an adjustment to reduce the number of credits a student will be paid.

Example: Student dropped a two-credit class after reimbursement request was made in MiSSG. Payment is pending – Ready to Pay status.

	Home (TIP) X					
	Application Information					
Exer Mossig Mrssg: Turtion Incentive Program SSN Quick View:	Institution Phase I Annual Credits Remaining Phase I Total Credits Remaining Phase I TERM Equivalent Annual Credits Remaining Phase I TERM Equivalent Total Credits Remaining Citatenship Override NSLDS Override	2.00 24.00 3.00 51.00	High School His Graduation Yéar Date Degree/Cettificate Earred Phase II Total Amount Remaining TIP Eligibility Override Default/Jinfund Oxed on State Aid TICN INFORMATION	\$2,000.00 No.		
Existing TIP TIP 2017 - 2018 TIP 2016 - 2017 TIP 2015 - 2016	Fall Keimbursement Data: Phase	Reimburseme (пемникахмент периеат) 1	nt Information			
Payment History FAFSA Data	Credit Hours TERM Equivalent Credit Hours Out of District	12.00	Total Turtion Total Mandatory Fees Total Amount	\$4,704.00 \$4,704.00		
	Spring Reimbursement Data: Phase Credit Mours TBRM Equivalent Credit Mours Opt of Disourc	PHLETE 4 INTERNENT RECORDST 1 10.00 13.00	Total Tuition Total Mandatory Fees Total Amount	\$3,920.00 \$0.00 \$1,920.00		
	Payment information					
	Term Fall Spring	Institution	Institution Type Public Public	Status Amou Paid 4704 Ready/Torky 19200 Total 88-24		
	Barrier and State and State and State	Program	n Totals	the second se		
	Total Cumulativ	# Paid \$13872.00				

- 1. Enter the student's SSN in Quick View Box.
- 2. Click on the current TIP year (example: TIP 2016-2017).
- 3. Scroll down on the student's record until you see Reimbursement Request.
- 4. Click on 'Delete.'
- 5. Request reimbursement for the correct number of credits using TIP Request Reimbursement feature. (Instructions begin on page 112.)

MiSSG Data Management System

MiSSG provides students, high school counselors, college financial aid personnel, and eligible training providers access to records, applications, and information from MI Student Aid.

Personally Identifiable Information and Data Security

"Personally Identifiable Information (PII)" shall refer to any data elements that could potentially identify a student, parent, or employee, and includes name, address, a personal identifier, such as Social Security number, date of birth, place of birth, etc. as defined in the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA).

When accessing MiSSG, School Users understand that MiSSG data, information, and reports are confidential and should be handled as such. When communicating with MI Student Aid staff regarding students, School Users understand that precautions should be taken to protect PII. This includes the use of MISSG Student Identifiers (MiSSG ID) in the place of Social Security numbers and date of birth.

As a MiSSG user, School Users agree to take appropriate administrative, technical, and physical safeguards to protect the data from any unauthorized use or access. School Users agree to abide by all State and Federal regulations, including FERPA and will ensure that PII will be transmitted through secure methods only. Data must be encrypted during any transmissions. School Users agree to protect the data and information according to acceptable standards and no less rigorously than their institutions own confidential information. Identifiable level data will not be reported or made public. School Users shall report to the Director of MI Student Aid immediately, if a School User becomes aware of any use or disclosure of the confidential information in MiSSG in violation of any applicable laws.